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There’s something pretty 
special about the people here 
at QUALCOMM. We’re fortunate to
have a world-class workforce.
Sixty-one percent of our employ-
ees have college degrees.
Twenty-five percent have one 
or more graduate degrees. 

Our people are creative thinkers.
Resilient. Flexible. Innovative.
We have over 1,000 patents
issued or pending. But there’s
more to QUALCOMM than technol-
ogy. There’s a culture here that
celebrates knowledge and
achievement. You can feel it in

the campus-like environment at
our headquarters in San Diego,
California. Recreational facili-
ties mixed in with offices and
labs. Plenty of places for people
to gather and talk. We welcome
exploration here.



We believe education is a global
riority. That’s why we have over
00 different training programs
or our employees around the

world. We’re dedicated to inspir-
ng young students and teachers
n the community to pursue math 

and science careers. In fact,
QUALCOMM supports the com-
munity through many outstanding
volunteer and philanthropic
activities. It’s amazing what you
can do when you put your mind
to it. That’s at the heart of our 

philosophy. If it hasn’t been done,
we’ll do it. If it has been done,
we’ll strive to do it better. That’s
the spirit of invention. That’s
QUALCOMM. 



Except for the historical information contained herein, the following discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. QUALCOMM’s future results could
differ materially from those discussed here. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not specifically limited to: the ability to develop and introduce cost
effective new products in a timely manner, avoiding delays in the commercial implementation of the CDMA technology; the risk that the rate of growth in the CDMA subscriber population will
decrease; risks associated with the scale-up, acceptance and operations of CDMA systems, including HDR technology; risks associated with component shortages; risks associated with
strategic opportunities or acquisitions, divestitures and investments the Company may pursue; risks related to the ability to sustain or improve operational efficiency and profitability; risks
relating to the success of Globalstar; developments in current or future litigation; the Company’s ability to effectively manage growth and the intense competition in the wireless communi-
cations industry; risks associated with vendor financing; timing and receipt of license fees and royalties; risks associated with international business activities; and risks related to customer
receivables and performance obligations, as well as the other risks detailed in this annual report and in the Company’s Form 10-K for fiscal year ended September 26, 1999. The Company’s con-
solidated financial data includes QPE and certain other consolidated subsidiaries of the Company.
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QUALCOMM is a company full of people with big
ideas. Those ideas lead to technology and products
that help people communicate.

Behind every phone, integrated circuit and satellite
ground station is an innovative way of problem solving.
Take Code Division Multiple Access (CDMA) technol-
ogy for example. We had an idea for creating a better
form of digital wireless communications. CDMA is
widely available and used by more than 41 million
people today. We believe it’s only a matter of time
before CDMA becomes the communications technology
of choice for most major wireless operators around
the world. 

Big ideas create big opportunities. And opportunities
open the door to creating value for our customers,
employees and shareholders. That is why QUALCOMM
will continue to innovate and lead.
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QUALCOMM is a leading supplier 
of digital wireless communications
products and services and is 
the innovator of CDMA, a digital
technology that has become the
fastest-growing digital standard 
for the wireless communications
industry. QUALCOMM is proud 
to employ many of the best people
in the industry. The Company is
headquartered in San Diego,
California and has offices in 
13 countries around the world.

QCOM
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W H O  W E  A R E

QUALCOMM is a leading supplier 
of digital wireless communications
products and services and is 
the innovator of CDMA, a digital
technology that has become the
fastest-growing digital standard 
for the wireless communications
industry. QUALCOMM is proud 
to employ many of the best people
in the industry. The Company is
headquartered in San Diego,
California and has offices in 
13 countries around the world.

QCOMSince its founding in 1985,
QUALCOMM has developed 
and commercialized innovative
communications technologies
that benefit people. 

Today, the Company earns 
revenues through manufacturing,
licensing its technology and
operating advanced communi-
cations systems.
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QUALCOMM CDMA TECHNOLOGIES

QUALCOMM TECHNOLOGY LICENSING

QUALCOMM CONSUMER PRODUCTS

QUALCOMM DIGITAL MEDIA, 
EUDORA AND HDR

* Code Division Multiple Access technology is the digital wireless communications technology pioneered by 
QUALCOMM that has become a recognized world standard for the telecommunications industry.

QCT

QTL

QWS

QCP

QDM

QUALCOMM WIRELESS SYSTEMS AND
WIRELESS BUSINESS SOLUTIONS

QCT is a leading developer
and supplier of CDMA* chip-
sets and software solutions
for wireless voice and data
products. The division 
provides manufacturers 
with tools and support to

make small, fast and func-
tional digital wireless phones
and network infrastructure
equipment. To date, more
than 200 million chips have
been shipped to CDMA man-
ufacturers worldwide.

QTL generates fees and
ongoing royalties from 
the worldwide sales by
QUALCOMM licensees of
CDMA phones, chipsets,
infrastructure and test

equipment. Many of our
licensees are now contri-
buting to worldwide CDMA
growth using QUALCOMM
intellectual property rights. 

QWS includes two busi-
nesses. Wireless Business
Solutions is responsible for
the OmniTRACS® family of
information management
systems for the transporta-
tion industry. Wireless

Systems provides gateways,
phones and contract ser-
vices primarily for the
Globalstar™ system. 

QCP designs, markets 
and manufactures CDMA
digital wireless phones 
that incorporate a variety 
of features and crystal clear
voice clarity. QUALCOMM
Personal Electronics, our
joint venture with Sony

Electronics, is one of the
world’s largest manufactur-
ers of CDMA digital phones.
QUALCOMM announced the
sale of its phone business 
to Kyocera Corporation of
Japan in December of 1999. 

QDM develops enabling 
technologies for processing
digital media, including a
digital cinema delivery 
system for motion picture
distributors. QDM also devel-
ops technology and products
for the U.S. Government,
including secure CDMA
wireless phones with net

broadcast capability and
end-to-end encryption.

Eudora®, our highly popular
e-mail software, is now mar-
keted in three user-selected
modes. And we continue to
develop and commercialize
our HDR technology to offer
high-capacity, high-speed
wireless data applications.
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T O  O U R  S H A R E H O L D E R S

After a decade of successful innovation, QUALCOMM continues to be one of
America’s fastest-growing companies. Wireless communication has proven
to be a very popular concept and we’re delivering products and services
that people really want. We are creating technology innovations embodied 
in chips and are consistently delivering each new generation chipset on
schedule. This has enabled CDMA to become the fastest-growing tech-
nology in our industry. 

QUALCOMM is the world leader in the development and sales of CDMA
chipsets and system software solutions. We achieved significant market
share, making QUALCOMM the second largest digital handset manufacturer 
in North America. As the innovator of CDMA, we benefit from licensing and
royalty fees for any CDMA product sold by a licensee. There are now more
than 75 leading telecom manufacturers around the globe licensed to build
and sell products based on cdmaOne™ technology. In September, FORTUNE
magazine moved QUALCOMM up from the 74th position to number 16 on its
list of America’s Fastest-Growing Companies.

Growing Demand

Substantial growth has been driven by the recent acceleration of phone
shipments by QUALCOMM and its licensees to satisfy strong demand in
North America, Latin America, South Korea and Japan. Over 41 million
people worldwide subscribe to CDMA wireless telephone service today.
Not only has the number of subscribers been going up rapidly, but the
amount of minutes they use is on the rise as well. Thanks to increased 
competition between wireless service providers, discounted rate plans 
are bringing down the cost per minute that customers have to pay.

CDMA demand is growing rapidly around the world, and there was strong
evidence of that this year in Japan when the first nationwide all-digital
network rolled out in April of 1999. The country’s two major carriers, DDI
and IDO, joined forces to make the launch possible, and soon they will
merge, along with KDD, to form a unified carrier. They demanded strict
specifications for their phones, and QUALCOMM was first-to-market with the
chips that enabled Japanese handset manufacturers to surpass the specifi-
cations and facilitate an on-time launch of the national network. Consumer
advertising campaigns in Japan coined the term “super digital” to describe
CDMA capabilities. 

This has been a year of transforma-
tion and success for our Company.
The digital wireless communications
technology we pioneered—CDMA—
has become a world standard for
mobile communications. 

CDMA is used in cellular, PCS and
wireless local loop systems both
terrestrial and satellite-based. 

More than 35 countries use our 
technology, and we expect this
will expand as the next generation
of CDMA unfolds over the next 
few years.

We had our first ever billion dollar
quarter and total annual revenues 
of $3.9 billion. This year, our stock
performance and revenue growth
helped us gain entry to the S&P 500
Index and the 1999 FORTUNE 500 ® list. 

Winning Ideas

Each one of our employees has con-
tributed to QUALCOMM’s continued
success in the global marketplace.
Our people are creative and innova-
tive thinkers who are applying
technology to enrich people’s lives.
As a result, today our Company holds
more than 350 U.S. patents with
about 800 more pending. 
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This was a year of big oper-
ating earnings growth and
improvements for QUALCOMM.
A key driver for us has been
the growing worldwide 

market for products and 
services based on CDMA, 
the digital wireless com-
munications technology 
we pioneered. 

0 S&P 500 +19.53%

QUALCOMM +2616%
(Nasdaq: QCOM)
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(Data Source: Bridge Systems)  

Stock Split

Stock Split

QUALCOMM Stock Price Performance
Compared to the Standard and Poor’s Index for Calendar Year 1999
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1 0 0  B E S T  
M A N A G E D  

C O M PA N I E S

1 0 0  B E S T  
C O M PA N I E S  T O  W O R K
F O R  I N  A M E R I C A ™

This was a year of big 
recognition for our Company.
FORTUNE named QUALCOMM
number 16 on its list of
America’s Fastest-Growing
Companies. It recognizes
companies with 30% growth
in revenue and earnings 

h h

their top 100 list for exempli-
fying the highest level of
operational and strategic
excellence. And, for the sec-
ond year in a row, FORTUNE
magazine ranked QUALCOMM
one of the 100 Best Companies
To Work For In America.

1 0 0  F A S T E S T-  
G R O W I N G  C O M PA N I E S

I N  A M E R I C A ™

100100



07

Evolving Strategy & Structure

From the day we first suggested that
CDMA technology offered a better
way to transmit wireless voice and
data, the key to the growth of our
business hinged on whether or not
the worldwide telecommunication
standards bodies shared our enthu-
siasm. Organizations such as the
International Telecommunications
Union (ITU) and others are focused
on determining the future world
standard, the so called third 
generation (3G) for wireless 
communications. 

With global profits at stake, it is
not surprising that competing manu-
facturers fiercely asserted that their
Intellectual Property Rights (IPR)
should be accepted as the 3G 
standard. QUALCOMM’s primary
competitor in this endeavor was
Swedish-based Ericsson, the leader
in developing systems based on the
competing GSM technology that has
long dominated European markets.

We resolved our patent litigation
with Ericsson this year and signed
important agreements that pave the
way for making CDMA the worldwide
standard. Under the agreements,
QUALCOMM and Ericsson are jointly
supporting a single CDMA world

standard and have entered into patent cross licenses. The cross licenses
are royalty-bearing for CDMA subscriber units sold by either party. As part
of the deal, Ericsson purchased certain assets of our terrestrial CDMA wire-
less infrastructure business located in San Diego, California and Boulder,
Colorado. The infrastructure business met its strategic goal of driving
CDMA forward into new markets. Ericsson is well equipped to enter CDMA
markets around the world and take this business to new levels of revenues
and profitability. 

QUALCOMM continues to provide leading edge chipsets and system software
to a wide range of infrastructure manufacturers. We entered into a major
agreement with Lucent to provide 3G CDMA chipsets and software for their
infrastructure base station equipment. QUALCOMM patents will be at the heart
of the next generation of CDMA technology for wireless communications. 

As part of our continuing effort to improve operations and focus on our core
competencies, we also made the strategic decision to examine alternatives,
including the sale of our phone manufacturing business. As carriers consoli-
date, the price they charge for phones goes down. We expect this to put
additional downward pricing pressure on manufacturers. We therefore
determined the timing was right to seek buyers for QCP. On December 22,
1999, we announced an agreement with Kyocera Corporation to transfer
our phone manufacturing operations and customer commitments. Kyocera,
the leading CDMA phone supplier in Japan, is now positioned to be a major
supplier in North America and other markets. 

We are very proud of the accomplishments of our Consumer Products
Division. A major 1999 U.S. customer satisfaction and loyalty survey deter-
mined that our products rated higher than Motorola, Nokia and Samsung. In
just four years, we gained substantial market share and manufactured more
than 14 million CDMA digital wireless phones by the end of fiscal 1999.
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Our CDMA technology got its start 
in the world through our strong
leadership in the wireless market.
Now we are taking our Company 
to the next level by once again
focusing on our core competen-
cies in CDMA technology. 

We have commercialized wireless
voice technology and continue to
supply the semiconductor chips
that drive the worldwide growth 
of those markets. Now we have
some big ideas for using our CDMA
expertise to enable other wireless
communications applications to
grow and evolve.

Enabling Technologies

Our first commercial venture, the
OmniTRACS system, has now stream-
lined operations for many of the
major trucking firms in the U.S., and
contributed significantly to highway
safety along the way. The system
enables transportation companies
to manage fleet information, track
truck locations and provide personal
communications services to their
drivers. The division was renamed
QUALCOMM Wireless Business
Solutions (QWBS) this year to reflect
its evolving mission. As part of the
division’s commitment to develop
new products and serve expanded
markets, QWBS entered into exciting
development deals with Symbol
Technologies, ORBCOMM and others.

QWBS had its most profitable year ever in fiscal 1999, shipping more than
48,000 OmniTRACS systems and passing the 300,000 mark for units sold
worldwide. There were major new contracts in Brazil, Argentina and the
U.S. In fact, we gained 200 new customers and 90 current customers
renewed their commitments. Shortly after the end of the fiscal year, the
People’s Republic of China agreed to allow us to bring our OmniTRACS
system to their country. 

QUALCOMM is a founding member of the Globalstar consortium, a constellation
of Low-Earth Orbiting (LEO) satellites that enables wireless communications
from virtually anywhere on the globe. The newly renamed QUALCOMM
Wireless Systems Division (QWS) provides contract services to Globalstar
by building and maintaining terrestrial ground stations (gateways) for the
system. QWS has now shipped 38 gateways around the world. We are proud
to report that after a decade of research and development activities, the
first phase in the commercial launch of the service took place in the
closing months of 1999. 

QWS also designs and manufactures satellite phone solutions for Globalstar.
After more than a million test calls on our handheld and fixed Globalstar
phones, we were awarded approvals by the leading regulatory authorities
in four continents, which paves the way for unrestricted use of our phones
across all international borders. 

This service is designed to enable people in remote and underserved 
locations in more than 100 countries to become connected to the world-
wide global communications network.

QUALCOMM develops enabling technologies for people with big ideas and
the potential social and economic benefits are evidenced daily in the mar-
ketplace. For example, our digital compression and network management
technologies may enable movie viewers to have a flawless film-going
experience in the future. Our Digital Media Division (QDM) is contributing 
to a movie industry effort to develop a practical “all-digital” cinema. This
promising new format was demonstrated this year when special test
screenings were conducted. As a developer for the “Condor Project,” the
QDM Division is also enabling government clients to have secure wireless
phones with encryption and a net broadcasting capability that incorporates
end-to-end encryption.



This was a year of major
milestones for QUALCOMM.
Our Company was named 
to the prestigious FORTUNE
500 list, which highlights 
the largest companies 
in America. 

We are extremely proud to
have entered the Standard &
Poor’s 500 Stock Index and to
have been named the top per-
forming stock on the S&P 500
in 1999.

500500
S & P F OR T U N E



10

This was a year of big rev-
enues for our Company. In the
third quarter of fiscal 1999,
for the first time, QUALCOMM
earned more than a billion
dollars in revenues.

R E C O R D  R E V E N U E S F O R  O N E  Q U A R T E R …

$1,
000,

000,000.



Eudora, our popular and award-
winning e-mail software, continues
to evolve. At year-end we announced
a major free upgrade for the program
and reconfigured our marketing
strategy. One core version of the
program is now available in three
user-selected modes, including a
feature-packed “free” version made
possible through advertising spon-
sorship. The new upgrade will be
offered to over 16 million people
worldwide who now subscribe to
Eudora Light.

As we contemplate the power 
of big ideas and the value created
through enabling technologies, we
inevitably come back to another
division that went through a name
change this year. QUALCOMM‘s
CDMA Technologies Division (QCT)
makes the chips that carry our vision
forward. The division has an impres-
sive track record of on-time delivery
of six generations of CDMA chipsets
and software solutions. 

Our chip business has an excellent
reputation for giving manufacturers
the functionality, features and inte-
gration they need to build innovative
and cost-effective CDMA products,
and we do that consistently with
the fastest possible time-to-market.

This year, our fifth generation chip for handsets (the MSM3000™) and 
its associated system software enabled digital phone manufacturers to
quickly build into their phones the most sophisticated voice recognition
capability available today. It allows for very long standby times of approxi-
mately 200 hours and can be packaged in extremely small phones. The
division shipped millions of these chips, which also support data speeds of
up to 86 kilobits per second (kbps). This is the only chip solution in the
industry that enables data to be transferred faster than traditional wired
modems used by most personal computers. The sixth generation MSM3100
began shipping in the fourth quarter this year, enabling 300 hours standby
time and 50% smaller package size. 

Leading The Way

Growing interest in computing and the Internet has fueled public demand
for faster communications technologies. To support market needs and
solidify our leadership in this field, QUALCOMM has developed High Data
Rate (HDR) technology. We think that technologies such as HDR today 
(and 3G in the future) may be as revolutionary to the wireless Internet as
CDMA technology has been to wireless voice communications. 

Today’s wireless communications networks (designated IS-95A) are capable
of transmitting data at approximately 14.4 kbps. The next generation in
network technology—IS-95B—supports 64 to 115 kbps. South Korea launched
the first commercial IS-95B network in 1999, and Japan followed suit 
in early 2000. To remain competitive, service providers in other markets,
including the U.S., are making plans to offer wireless data applications.
QUALCOMM will strive to be there every step of the way with the technology
and support to spark the transition. 

HDR has potential for both preceding and complementing 3G, the next 
evolutionary step in the wireless communications technology timeline.
QUALCOMM is in a unique position to enable growth and development in 
the voice and data arenas of the wireless communications industry. We
believe we have the IPR and the people to continue to be a leader through
the next technology revolution.

11



12

Creating Value

We believe the Company performed
exceptionally well this year and that
fact was reflected not only in market
acceptance of our technology but 
in increased revenues, profits and
stock value. 

QUALCOMM’s stock price growth 
led our Board of Directors to effect 
a two-for-one stock split in May 1999
and a four-for-one stock split in
December 1999. 

We continued to reduce overall
expenses as a percentage of rev-
enues and substantially improved 
our margins this year. CIO Magazine
acknowledged our operational and
strategic excellence by naming
QUALCOMM a recipient of the 1999
CIO-100 award for companies pos-
sessing the strategy to prosper into
the next century. 

After being named to the S&P 500, we anticipated increased demand from
the index funds. We sold 6.9 million shares to these funds and gained net
proceeds of over $1 billion to fund our future growth. Our total market capi-
talization reached a milestone this fiscal year as QUALCOMM became a 
$109 billion company by the end of calendar 1999. Our ideas have clearly
led to results.

Our Company gained additional capital this year through very strong revenues
across business units. Revenues grew to $3.9 billion, up 18% from last year.
License, royalty and development fees for fiscal 1999 were $343 million,
compared to $218 million last year. Earnings before taxes this year increased
by 106% to $307 million compared to $149 million last year.

The outlook for fiscal 2000 and beyond is very positive as worldwide CDMA
continues to grow, and our Company is well positioned to succeed in
tomorrow’s wireless communications markets. We are very pleased with
the demand for our products and services and want to conclude by thanking
all the outstanding employees who are making QUALCOMM an exceptional
performer and the leader in our industry. Through ethical and intelligent
pursuit of excellence, all of us at QUALCOMM are pursuing big ideas to bring
meaningful benefits to people around the world. 

R I C H A R D  S U L P I Z I O

President and

Chief Operating Officer

D R .  I R W I N  M A R K  J A C O B S

Chairman and 

Chief Executive Officer
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D R .  I R W I N  M A R K  J A C O B S R I C H A R D  S U L P I Z I O



the journey of a 
thousand miles begins 
with a single chip

the journey of a 
thousand miles begins 
with a single chip
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Enabling manufacturers…
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Enabling manufacturers…
Our chipsets and software
solutions have been sold to
CDMA manufacturers world-
wide and can be found on 
six continents.

> Inspiring CDMA
manufacturers to
make smaller,
smarter phones
with unprecedented
capabilities.



the phone
is greater than the 
sum of its parts

the phone
is greater than the 
sum of its parts

> Giving people power and control
with technology that matters and
makes life easier.
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Enriching lives…Enriching lives…
We help people 
lead more mobile,
productive lives with
CDMA digital wire-
less phones that
provide a variety of
time-saving features
and crystal clear
voice clarity.

17



no one is an island 
with CDMA
no one is an island 
with CDMA
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> Bringing people together by fueling the
most advanced wireless networks and
offering wireless solutions for business.



Linking people…Linking people…
We develop the
semiconductor 
chipsets and system
software that help
drive the worldwide 
growth of CDMA 
digital networks.

19



what a wireless web 
we weave
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what a wireless web 
we weave

> Breaking the
speed barrier
with high 
data rate 
capabilities
allowing 
for very fast
wireless
Internet
access.



Delivering services…
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Delivering services…
Our innovative satellite technology delivers
powerful tracking and information services to
the transportation industry. And the ground 
stations and satellite phones we build for the
Globalstar network are enabling communica-
tions from virtually anywhere in the world. 



These timelines represent a roadmap, tracing the
evolution of technology that put our Company on the
map and changing the way people communicate.
It’s a complex story, but here’s what it really means. 

About a decade ago, QUALCOMM engineers pio-
neered the development of a revolutionary digital
wireless communications technology called CDMA
for commercial use. Compared to traditional analog
systems, CDMA dramatically increases system
capacity for network operators and enables superior
voice quality, greater coverage and extended talk
times for end users. CDMA phones also offer a wide
range of features such as caller ID, hands-free 
calling and Internet data access. 

Today, CDMA has gained global acceptance and is
the fastest-growing digital wireless communications
technology in history. 

22

I N N O VAT I O N  I S  T H E  H E A R T  O F  O U R  C O M PA N Y
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Today, CDMA has gained global acceptance and is
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KEY

CDMA: QUALCOMM’s pioneering Code Division Multiple
Access wireless telecommunications technology. 

CSM: Cell Site Modem. A chipset and system software
solution used in CDMA wireless network 
infrastructure equipment.

Gen: Generation.

HDR: High Data Rate technology.

kbps: Kilobits per second. A measure of wireless trans-
i i d

Mbps: Megabits per second. Another measure of wire-
less transmission speed.

MSM: Mobile Station Modem. A chipset and system
software solution used in CDMA wireless 
handsets.

PCS: Personal Communications Services. Mobile wire-
less telecommunications systems that operate at
1800-1900 MHz frequencies.

R&D: Research and Development

1st gen MSM

• R&D begins 

2nd gen MSM
(MSM1)

• Chipset developed

3rd gen MSM
(MSM2) 

• Chipset developed

• Used in QCP800 phone

4th gen MSM
(MSM2300)  

• Highly cost-effective 
chipset developed 

5th gen MSM (MSM3000)

• Chipset developed 

• Up to 200 hours standby time

• Faster data rates (up to 86 kbps)

• IS-95A/IS-95B compliant

6th gen MSM (MSM3100)

• Chipset developed

• 50% smaller

• Up to 300 hours standby time

• Mixed signal integration

• Supports USB data interface

MSM5000

• Compliant with 
IMT-2000 1X MC

• IS-95A and IS-95B
compatible

• 2X voice capacity

• Faster data rates 
(up to 153.6 kbps)

iMSM family

•Supports HDR technol-
ogy (up to 2.4 Mbps)

• Advanced architec-
ture supports
Internet services

• Features dual
processors, embedded
memory and more

• Supports 3rd party
Op Systems/Apps

1st CSM solution requires multiple chips

• CSM modulation chip

• CSM demod chip

• Viterbi decoder chip

CSM 1.0 offers an integrated
solution (all-in-one chipset)

• Works with IS-95A and 
IS-95B networks

• Faster data rates 
(up to 14.4 kbps)

• One channel per chip

CSM 1.5 developed

• Smaller, cheaper and
uses less power

• One channel 
per chip 

CSM2000 developed

• Works with 
IS-95A & IS-95B 
networks

• CSM 1.5 compatible

• Faster data rates 
(up to 115.2 kbps)

• 8 channels per chip

CSM5000 

• 3G CDMA 1x MC 
(world wireless standard
of the future)

• Faster data rates 
(up to 307.2 kbps)

• 30+ channels per chip

• QUALCOMM proposes a 
superior wireless telecom 
solution called CDMA

• Field trials and 
demonstrations

• Full-scale CDMA 
R&D underway

• Sprint PCS selects
CDMA technology
for nationwide
network

• International telecom
regulatory body accepts
1st CDMA standard
(called IS-95) 

• South Korea selects
CDMA

• Regulatory body accepts
U.S. PCS standard

• 1st commercial CDMA
system deployed in
Hong Kong

• Commercial CDMA 
service launches 
in South Korea

• PCS PrimeCo 
activates national
PCS service in U.S.

• High volume 
shipments of CDMA
chipsets begin

• Landmark agreements
pave the way for
QUALCOMM’s CDMA 
to become the world 
standard for the next 
generation of wireless
telecom (called 3G)

• Over 41 million cdmaOne
subscribers worldwide



Licensing Our Technology…

License, royalty and development
fees generated $343 million during
the 1999 fiscal year. 24

Licensing Our Technology…

INFRASTRUCTURE

Fujitsu Limited
Hitachi, Ltd.
Hughes Network Systems, Inc.
Hyundai Electronics Industries Co., Ltd.
LG Information & Communications, Ltd.
Lucent Technologies Inc.
Motorola, Inc.
NEC Corporation
Nortel Networks Corporation
Samsung Electronics Co.
Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson

CABLE AND MISCELLANEOUS 

EQUIPMENT

Ortel Corporation
Transcept

TEST EQUIPMENT

Advantest Corporation
ANDO Electric Co., Ltd.
Anritsu Corporation
Comarco Wireless Technologies, Inc.
Grayson Electronics Company
Hewlett-Packard Company
IFR Systems, Inc.
Japan Radio Co., Ltd.
LCC Corporation
Motorola, Inc.
Racal Instruments Ltd.
Rhode & Schwartz GmbH & Co.
Safco Corporation
Sage Instruments
Tektronix, Inc.
Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson
Wavetek GmbH
Willtech Incorporated

License, royalty and development
fees generated $343 million during
the 1999 fiscal year. 

D I G I TA L  W I R E L E S S  
N E T W O R K S

QUALCOMM’s CDMA technology is
the engine for the networks that
deliver the world’s most sophisti-
cated digital wireless technology.
Commercial cdmaOne™ networks
around the world served over 41
million subscribers by September 
of 1999, and the number is growing.
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SUBSCRIBER EQUIPMENT

Acer Peripherals, Inc.
Alps Electric Co./Alpine Electronics Inc.
Appeal Telecom Co., Ltd.
Casio Computer Co., Ltd.
Fujitsu Limited
GTRAN Incorporated
Haitai Electronics Co., Ltd.
Hanwha Corporation
Hitachi, Ltd.
Hughes Network Systems, Inc.
Hyundai Electronics Industries Co., Ltd.
Kenwood Corporation
Kokusai Electric Company 
Kyocera Corporation
LG Information & Communications, Ltd.
LG Electronics Inc.
Lucent Technologies Inc.
Matsushita Communication Industrial Co.
Maxon Electronics Co., Ltd.
Mitsubishi Electric Corporation
Motorola, Inc.

NEC Corporation
NIPPONDENSO Co., Ltd. (DENSO)
Nokia Mobile Phones Ltd.
Oki Electric Industry Co., Ltd.
Pantech Co., Ltd.
Philips Electronics N.V.
Samsung Electronics Co.
Sanyo Electric Co., Ltd.
Sewon Co., Ltd.
Sharp Corporation
Siemens Rolm Communications Inc.
Sierra Wireless, Inc.
SK Telecom Co., Ltd.
Sony Corporation
Standard Telecom Co., Ltd.
Synertek, Inc.
Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson
Telson Electronics Co., Ltd.
Toshiba Corporation
Uniden Corporation
United Computer & Telecommunication, Inc.
Wide Telecom Co., Ltd.

SUBSCRIBER EQUIPMENT (GLOBALSTAR)

Ericsson OMC
Telital S.r.l

ASICS

DSPC, a subsidiary of Intel
LSI Logic Corporation
PrairieComm Incorporated

C D M A  T E L E P H O N E S

QUALCOMM’s CDMA chipsets and
system software solutions are used
by manufacturers to build smaller,
faster, smarter phones. Our
MSM3000™ single-chip Mobile
Station Modem (MSM™) baseband
processing solution offers many
new features, including longer
standby times and higher data rates.
Higher data rates enable wireless
phone users to access a new breed
of Internet applications with fast
packet switched access to data-
bases, e-mail and web browsing.



HDR is to wireless Internet
access as CDMA is to 
wireless voice service.26

B U S I N E S S  D E V E L O P M E N T …

M A R K E T  D R I V E R S

Speed and bandwidth are key to
giving people the data and Internet
applications they want. QUALCOMM’s
High Data Rate (HDR) technology
and the next generation of digital
wireless technology, called “3G,”
are expected to break that speed
barrier wide open. QUALCOMM engi-
neers are preparing the chipsets
and software that can launch the
new standard. But being innovative
means being there first. We’re 
commercializing a wireless data
solution right now to offer 3G 
benefits sooner. HDR is a versatile
high-capacity, high-speed wireless
telecommunications technology
that can change the way people
will access the Internet. HDR works
on existing 1.25 MHz channel net-
works and optimizes data packets
at speeds up to 2.4 Mbps. It can
overlay existing wireless networks
or work as a stand-alone system. 
It works on fixed, portable, and
mobile applications. And it’s another
example of QUALCOMM’s innovative
thinking. We’re meeting the high
speed challenge head on… and
we’re not waiting for the next 
generation to do it. 

HDR is to wireless Internet
access as CDMA is to 
wireless voice service.

9.6 kbps 28.8 kbps 56 kbps 128 kbps 384 kbps 2 + Mbps

Rare Internet
use, only in
text modes

First useful
speed for
graphics

Makes the web
experience
easy and fun,
even full web
pages, some
downloads

Fast enough
for large
downloads
and multi-
media

Close to
office LAN
experience,
almost full
network
transparency

HDR–
Full Internet
experience

DATA RATE EVOLUTION
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T H E  R O A D  T O  T H E  F U T U R E …

C O N T I N U I N G  T E C H N O L O G Y

The world’s most advanced digital
wireless technology, QUALCOMM’s
CDMA, meets the radio air interface
needs for the next generation of
wireless communications, called
IMT-2000 CDMA. This flexible stan-
dard functions in three modes—
Multi-Carrier, Direct Spread, and
Time Division Duplex—and oper-
ates with ANSI-41 and GSM MAP
networks. CDMA will have the
whole world covered. And with
CDMA chosen as a next generation
standard for the industry, carriers
across the globe will have clear
migration paths for transitioning
their networks. Manufacturers
working on next generation prod-
ucts gain cost advantages and
faster time-to-market. Users will
truly have untethered commu-
nications at high transmission
speeds. Whether you’re a network
operator, a manufacturer or an end
user, CDMA 3G is the promise of 
the future. 

CDMA TECHNOLOGY ROADMAP

CDMA is the technology for 
the next generation.

95 96 97 98 99 00 01 02 03

IS-95A
• 14.4 kbps data
• Overlay AMPS
• Voice quality
• Spectral efficiency
• Capacity

IS-95B
• Up to 115.2 kbps data
• Advanced soft handoff
• Access handoff
• Mobile-assisted 

inter-frequency 
hard handoff 

3G MC 1X
• Up to 384 kbps data
• Double voice capacity
• Double standby time

3G Multi-
Carrier 3X

• Voice and data
• Up to 2 Mbps data

3G Direct
Spread 

• Voice and data
• Up to 2 Mbps data

HDR (Data-only)
• Data-only: dedicated and optimized 

1.25 MHz channel
• Up to 2.4 Mbps peak rate
• Up to 7 Mbps average per cell
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Y E A R  AT  A  G L A N C E :  A  S U M M A R Y  O F  N E W S  R E L E A S E S

Network Optimization
A new network optimization tool for
field test engineers, The Retriever
pilot scanner/test phone provides
technicians with portable, wireless
over-the-air testing of network and
handset performance over CDMA
digital cellular and PCS networks. 

12.10.98

Ericsson Supports Convergence
Ericsson publicly supports the 
convergence of cdma2000™ and 
W-CDMA, the proposals based on
CDMA for 3G digital wireless tech-
nology. QUALCOMM invites them to
join in the discussions. 

01.11.99

Best Companies List
FORTUNE magazine names QUALCOMM
to its list of “100 Best Companies to
Work for in America.”

01.19.99

First Quarter Results
QUALCOMM reports the highest quar-
terly revenues in its 13-year history. 
• 1st quarter fiscal 1999 revenues:

$941M (up 20% over Q1 FY98)

• 1st quarter net income: $49M
(up 32% over Q1 FY98)

• 1st quarter EPS: $.33 per share
(diluted) compared with $.25 
per share (diluted) in Q1 FY98

11.17.98

$35M Handset Agreement in Brazil
The largest telecom company in
Brazil agrees to purchase QUALCOMM
CDMA digital handsets. The Company,
TELESP, serves 30 million people.

11.18.98

QUALCOMM: One Of The Fast 500 
Deloitte & Touche names QUALCOMM
to its “Fast 500 ” list for the second
consecutive year. The 500 fastest
growing technology companies in
the U.S. are based on a five-year
percentage growth in revenues.
QUALCOMM revenues grew at a
compound annual rate of 88% from
1993-97. 

11.25.98

Q Phone Award 
PC Computing magazine awards 
Q phone the 1998 Most Valuable
Product award in the Digital Office
Business Tools division for Best
Cell Phone. 

12.08.98

Truck Fleet Selects OmniTRACS 
Omaha-based Cornhusker Motor
Lines signs a contract to outfit their
entire fleet with OmniTRACS.

WLL Network In Africa 
Mauritius Telecom contracts for a
cdmaOne (IS-95) WLL network that
adds 50,000 subscribers to its digital
wireline network. Mauritius has the
highest phone penetration in Africa.

10.08.98

Eudora E-mail by Phone Service 
The newest release of QUALCOMM’s
popular e-mail software allows 
e-mail access by phone thanks to
text-to-speech technology that con-
verts e-mail into digitized speech. 

10.26.98

OmniTRACS Division Renamed
The OmniTRACS Division changes
its name to QUALCOMM Wireless
Business Solutions (QWBS). 

OmniTRACS Contract Extended 
Prime, one of the top ten U.S. trucking
firms, signs on for five more years
of service.

11.03.98

Record Earnings & Revenues 
• 4th quarter fiscal 1998 revenues:

$926M (up 54% over Q4 FY97) 

• 4th quarter net income: $40M 
or $.27 per share (diluted) 
(up 33% and 29% over Q4 FY97,
respectively)

• FY98 revenues: $3.3B (up 60%
over FY97)

• FY98 EPS: $.73 per share (diluted)
(up 15% over FY97)

• Excluding non-recurring charges,
FY98 EPS: $.94 per share (diluted) 

11.10.98

Joint Venture With Microsoft
QUALCOMM and Microsoft form a
new joint venture company named
Wireless Knowledge LLC. The JV
was formed to enable carriers to
offer mobile customers wireless
access to data and applications
over their choice of wireless net-
works and enterprise systems. 
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03.25.99

CDMA Agreement With Ericsson
Ericsson and QUALCOMM agree to
jointly support a single CDMA world
standard with three optional modes
for the next generation of wireless
communications, to enter into
royalty-bearing cross licenses for
their respective patent portfolios
and to settle the existing litigation
between the companies. As part of
the agreement, Ericsson purchased
our terrestrial CDMA wireless infra-
structure business, including its R&D
resources, located in San Diego,
California and Boulder, Colorado. 

04.09.99

FORTUNE 500 List
FORTUNE magazine names QUALCOMM
to its 1999 FORTUNE 500 ® list, which
highlights the largest companies 
in America. 

04.14.99

Stock Split
The Board declares a 2-for-1 stock
split of the Company’s Common
Stock distributed (on May 10) to
stockholders of record on April 21.

04.19.99

Japan’s First CDMA Network
QUALCOMM’s 5th generation MSM3000
chipsets are featured in the phones
developed by three Japanese manu-
facturers for the country’s first
nationwide cdmaOne network.

02.08.99

15,000 Truckers Get CabCARD®

The nation’s largest trucking firm,
Schneider, contracts for CabCARD
e-mail and pre-paid phone services. 

6th Generation Chips 
The 6th generation MSM3100™ 
chipset and system software solu-
tion features a 50 percent reduction
in chip size and up to 300 hours of
standby time. The first baseband
modem to offer on-chip hardware
support for in-phone GPS-based
CDMA position and location ser-
vices, it enables manufacturers to
meet the FCC mandate for emer-
gency location tracking (E911). 

Advanced Voice Recognition 
An add-on option for the
MSM3000/3100 system software,
PureVoice VR™ voice recognition
software allows manufacturers to
quickly add powerful speech capa-
bilities to CDMA handsets without
additional hardware. 

03.15.99

$14M Mobile Development
Agreement 
QUALCOMM and Symbol Tech-
nologies, Inc. will develop mobile
vehicle computer and integrated
technology solutions for the trans-
portation industry. 

03.17.99

10 Millionth Phone Shipped 
QUALCOMM Personal Electronics
(QPE), a joint venture between 
subsidiaries of QUALCOMM and
Sony Electronics Inc., ships its 
ten millionth CDMA phone. 

01.25.99

New “Thin Phone”
The QUALCOMM Thin Phone (the 4th
generation of CDMA digital wireless
phones) features an ultra-thin design
and weighs only four ounces. 

01.26.99

Cheaper E-mail For Truckers 
QUALCOMM reduces prices dramati-
cally on CabCARD®,  providing e-mail
savings to over 85,000 truck drivers. 

01.27.99

30 Million MSMs
Mobile Station Modem chip ship-
ments pass the 30 million mark. 

5th Generation Chips  
Production shipping begins for the
5th generation CDMA chipset and
system software. Twenty-one leading
CDMA handset manufacturers agree
to purchase the MSM3000 chipset
and system software. 

02.01.99

New Chip Packaging 
New packaging debuts for the
MSM3000 and IFT3000™ and
IFR3000™ fully integrated Inter-
mediate Frequency (IF) chipsets.
Manufacturers can design smaller
handsets with longer stand-by times
and higher data-rate services. It is
the first single-chip baseband solu-
tion to enable data speeds up to 86.4
kbps. Handheld wireless devices
using the chipset will be faster than
personal computers equipped with
standard modems.
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04.20.99

Second Quarter Earnings
• 2nd quarter fiscal 1999 revenues:

$932M (up 23% over Q2 FY98)

• 2nd quarter net loss: $43M 
(down 264% from Q2 FY98)

• 2nd quarter EPS: $.29 per share
loss compared with $.18 per
share (diluted) in Q2 FY98

Excluding Non-Recurring Charges:
• 2nd quarter net income: $65M 

(up 250% over Q2 FY98)

• 2nd quarter EPS: $.41 per share
(diluted) (up 23% over Q2 FY98) 

04.28.99

Better Trailer Tracking Solutions
QUALCOMM and ORBCOMM will offer
a comprehensive satellite-based
trailer tracking system. 

05.06.99

More CabCARD Truck Fleets 
Ohio-based Roberts Express plans
to offer CabCARD services to all of
its independent contractors. 

05.11.99

$120M Phone Deal With US WEST
US WEST agrees to purchase CDMA
digital PCS phones, including the
new pdQ smartphone™ and Thin
Phone, for its CDMA network in 14
Western and Midwestern states.
Customers will have advanced
CDMA digital services, including
wireless Internet access.

05.19.99

High-Speed Packet Data To Asia
QUALCOMM’s innovative new 
software solution facilitates High-
Speed Packet Data (HSPD) service in
Japan and Korea. It is the industry’s
only technology solution delivering
86.4 kbps data. 

05.21.99

Thin Phone In Canada
Canada’s Clearnet Communications
chooses QUALCOMM’s new Thin
Phone for its pre-paid PCS offering. 

05.24.99

3G Chipsets
QUALCOMM announces the first 
3G CDMA chipset and system soft-
ware solution, the MSM5000™ and
CSM5000™.    A single chip will handle
32 simultaneous calls. Initial data
rates of 153 kbps (increasing to 
2 Mbps) will facilitate Internet-ready
consumer products over IS-95A/B
and cdma2000 networks. 

Infrastructure Sale Completed,
Patent Disputes Settled
The sale of QUALCOMM’s terrestrial
CDMA wireless infrastructure busi-
ness to Ericsson closes. Patent
litigation is settled. 

06.02.99

OmniTRACS In Tennessee
Nashville-based Star Transportation
replaces its communication system
with QUALCOMM’s OmniTRACS. It
orders 430 OmniTRACS units.

06.11.99

Chairman Honor
The Smithsonian recognizes 
QUALCOMM Chairman and CEO Dr.
Irwin Mark Jacobs for his achieve-
ments in the application of information
technology to the benefit of society.
A record of his life and career is
included in the Smithsonian’s
National Museum of American
History.

06.14.99

Subscriber Equipment License 
QUALCOMM grants Sierra Wireless a
royalty-bearing license for cdmaOne
and cdma2000 wireless applications,
including cellular, PCS and wireless
local loop.

06.15.99

Wireless Business Solution
724 Solutions, Inc. chooses the 
pdQ smartphone as one of the key
platforms for its new wireless
financial services solution in market
trial by the Bank of Montreal and
Bell Mobility. The system enables
financial institutions to deliver per-
sonalized banking, brokerage and
information content on a variety of
Internet access devices. 

07.12.99

S&P 500
QUALCOMM is added to the S&P 
500 Index.

07.15.99

Lucent Emergency Caller Project 
QUALCOMM and Lucent will jointly
develop technology that locates
wireless phone users in distress.
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07.19.99

Third Quarter Earnings 
• 3rd quarter fiscal 1999 revenues: 

$1B (up 15% over Q3 FY98)
• 3rd quarter net income: $59M 

(up 909% over Q3 FY98)
• 3rd quarter EPS: $ 35 per share

(diluted) compared to $.04 per
share (diluted) in Q3 FY98 

Excluding Non-Recurring Charges:
• 3rd quarter net income: $135M 

(up 445% over Q3 FY98)
• 3rd quarter EPS: $.75 per share

(diluted)

07.20.99

More Powerful Voice Recognition 
PureVoice VR 2.1 software enables
manufacturers to add powerful
speech capabilities to their CDMA
handsets in English, Japanese 
and Korean. 

$400M Phone Deal With Sprint 
Sprint PCS purchases QUALCOMM’s
new Internet-capable Thin Phone
and pdQ smartphone for its national
network. 

Enhanced Audio
PureVoice Audio AGC software for
the MSM3000 and MSM3100 enables
superior sounding handsets without
additional hardware.

07.21.99

Common Stock Offering
QUALCOMM places 6.9 million shares
of common stock in a public offering
at $156.50 per share. Net proceeds
are $1.079 billion. 

08.02.99

High-Speed Data In Korea 
QUALCOMM will join high-speed
data trials on KT Freetel’s advanced
CDMA network, the world’s first 
IS-95B network. 

08.18.99

1999 CIO-100 Award
CIO Magazine recognizes 
QUALCOMM for operational and
strategic excellence. 

08.24.99

South American Mobile Deal
QUALCOMM and AUTOTRAC Comércio
e Telecomunicacões S.A. of Brazil
will bring OmniTRACS to Argentina.

08.25.99

100 Fastest-Growing Companies 
FORTUNE magazine names QUALCOMM
to the list of the 100 Fastest-Growing
Companies in America. Eligible
companies have a 30% annual
revenue and EPS growth rate.

09.14.99

Phone Business Transition
QUALCOMM announces that the 
terrestrial phone business may 
be transitioned. 

pdQ suite Applications 
The pdQ suite package offers 
Palm Pilot users applications 
that support e-mail control and 
wireless Internet browsing. 

09.16.99

CRST Buys 1,150 OmniTRACS
Iowa-based CRST replaces its
mobile communication system 
with QUALCOMM’s OmniTRACS. 

09. 21.99

MSM3000 Paves Way To Future
29 manufacturers are now designing
products based on QUALCOMM’s
MSM3000. 

Voice Recognition Contracts 
LG Information and Communications
and Acer Peripherals select PureVoice
VR for their CDMA wireless handsets.

09.22.99

Next Generation CDMA Chipsets
QUALCOMM ships samples of the 6th
generation MSM3100 CDMA chipset
and system software that supports
data rates up to 86.4 kbps. 

pdQ smartphone to Israel 
Israel’s Pele-phone Communications
buys QUALCOMM’s pdQ smartphones
for its national network. 

New Mobile Station Modem Family
The iMSM product family promises
expanded data capabilities and very
advanced wireless Internet services.

World’s Smallest Satellite Phone
QUALCOMM’s tri-mode portable phone
provides access to the Globalstar
network, an advanced combination
of satellite and wireline technology,
and also accesses cellular networks.

New pdQ smartphone Application
WaveWare Communications chooses
the pdQ smartphone for its WaveSync
server, allowing Palm Computing
users to synchronize multiple 
applications.

09.23.99

Lucent and QUALCOMM 3G Alliance
QUALCOMM will provide CSM5000
infrastructure chips and software for
Lucent’s CDMA base station equip-
ment. Technology being developed
by the two CDMA leaders is called
cdma2000 1X RTT, and is the first
phase of the industry approved 
IS-2000 3G standard. 
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QUALCOMM Incorporated

F I N A N C I A L  P E R F O R M A N C E

Revenues & Gross Profit 

(Dollars in Millions)

108

92 93 94 95 96 97 98 99

Revenues

Gross Profit

3,937

42
169

68

272
115

387

173

814

278

578

1,014

2,096

3,348

1,452

Earnings Per Share

(Diluted)

$0.05
$0.12 $0.14

$0.26
$0.15

$0.64
$0.73

$1.24

$2.46

$2.99

92 93 94 95 96 97 98 99

As Reported

Operating (excluding non-recurring charges)

Pro Forma (excluding non-recurring charges
and operating results associated with 
wireless infrastructure business)

Revenues & Gross Profit %

(Dollars in Millions)

786

Q 1

FY98

Q 2 Q 3 Q 4 Q 1

FY99

Q 2 Q 3 Q 4

Revenues

Gross Profit

761

875

926 941 932

1,004

1,060

30% 30% 29% 33% 32%

33%
40% 41%

Research & Development

(Dollars in Millions)

25 27

50

80

162

236

349

381

92 93 94 95 96 97 98 99

Research & Development
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(In thousands, except per share data) QUALCOMM Incorporated

S E L E C T E D  F I N A N C I A L  D ATA

Years Ended September 30,(1)

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995

STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:

Revenues $ 3,937,299 $ 3,347,870 $ 2,096,365 $ 813,850 $ 386,612

Operating expenses:
Cost of revenues 2,485,072 2,333,399 1,518,006 535,861 213,170 
Research and development 381,139 349,483 235,922 162,340 80,171
Selling, general and administrative 425,941 410,347 236,188 123,085 72,672
Other (2) 240,007 11,976 8,792 — —

Total operating expenses 3,532,159 3,105,205 1,998,908 821,286 366,013

Operating income (loss) 405,140 242,665 97,457 (7,436) 20,599
Interest expense (14,698) (8,058) (11,012) (3,354) (2,264)
Investment income (expense), net 24,576 (46,663) 45,266 37,417 21,545
Distributions on Trust Convertible Preferred Securities 

of subsidiary trust (39,297) (39,270) (23,277) — —
Other (3) (69,035) — — — —

Income before income taxes 306,686 148,674 108,434 26,627 39,880
Income tax expense(4) (105,807) (40,142) (16,500) (5,600) (9,700)

Net income $ 200,879 $ 108,532 $ 91,934 $ 21,027 $ 30,180 

Net earnings per common share: (5)

Basic $ 1.35 $ 0.78 $ 0.68 $ 0.16 $ 0.28 
Diluted $ 1.24 $ 0.73 $ 0.64 $ 0.15 $ 0.26

Shares used in per share calculations: (5)

Basic 148,678 138,406 134,670 131,115 106,833
Diluted 162,472 147,924 143,774 140,669 115,114

BALANCE SHEET DATA:

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 1,684,926 $ 303,324 $ 808,858 $ 354,281 $ 578,996 
Working capital 2,101,861 655,611 982,117 425,231 599,633 
Total assets 4,534,950 2,566,713 2,274,680 1,185,330 940,717 
Bank lines of credit 112,000 151,000 110,000 80,700 —
Other debt and capital lease obligations 3,894 6,921 10,967 13,142 39,494 
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable Trust Convertible 

Preferred Securities of a subsidiary trust holding solely 
debt securities of the Company 659,555 660,000 660,000 — —

Total stockholders’ equity 2,871,755 957,596 1,024,178 844,913 799,617

(1) The Company’s fiscal years end on the last Sunday in September. As a result, fiscal 1996 includes 53 weeks.
(2) Consists of asset impairment and other charges related to the Ericsson transaction and restructuring charges in 1999, acquired in-process research and development

and asset impairment charges in 1998, and asset impairment charges in 1997 (see “Financial Review”).
(3) Consists of non-operating charges related to financial guarantees on projects which the Company will no longer pursue as a result of the Ericsson transaction and the

write-off of assets related to an investment in the Ukraine and loans to an investee of Leap Wireless (see “Financial Review”).
(4) Includes the tax benefit of $22 million in 1997 and $3 million in 1995 from a reduction in the valuation allowance to recognize deferred tax assets.
(5) Net earnings per common share and shares used in per share calculation were retroactively restated for 1997 — 1995 in connection with the adoption of Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.” See Note 1 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.” On April 14, 1999, the Company’s Board of
Directors declared a two-for-one stock split of the Company’s common stock in the form of a stock dividend. The stock dividend was distributed on May 10, 1999 to
stockholders of record on April 21, 1999. All references to number of shares and per share amounts have been restated to reflect this stock split.



QUALCOMM Incorporated

F I N A N C I A L  R E V I E W

Except for the historical information contained herein, the following
discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and
uncertainties. QUALCOMM’s future results could differ materially from
those discussed here. Factors that could cause or contribute to such
differences include, but are not specifically limited to: the ability to
develop and introduce cost effective new products in a timely manner,
avoiding delays in the commercial implementation of the CDMA tech-
nology; risk that the rate of growth in the CDMA subscriber population
will decrease; risks associated with the scale-up, acceptance and
operations of CDMA systems, including HDR technology; risks associat-
ed with component shortages; risks associated with strategic
opportunities or acquisitions, divestitures and investments the Company
may pursue; risks related to the ability to sustain or improve opera-
tional efficiency and profitability; risks relating to the success of
Globalstar; developments in current or future litigation; the Company’s
ability to effectively manage growth and the intense competition in the
wireless communications industry; risks associated with vendor
financing; timing and receipt of license fees and royalties; risks asso-
ciated with international business activities; and risks related to
customer receivables and performance obligations, as well as the
other risks detailed in this annual report and in the Company’s Form 10-K
for fiscal year ended September 26, 1999. The Company’s consolidated
financial data includes QPE and certain other consolidated subsidiaries
of the Company.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

On September 14, 1999, QUALCOMM announced it is considering sev-
eral strategic options for its terrestrial-based phone business that
currently holds an industry leading position in CDMA handsets in the
North American market. With increased competition, parts shortages
and industry consolidation reducing margins in consumer products,
QUALCOMM sought to transition the business to a manufacturer that
would support its customer base and employees while providing
economies of scale, a strong purchasing base and other operating effi-
ciencies. On December 22, 1999, QUALCOMM announced an agreement
with Kyocera Corporation (“Kyocera”) which will result in a newly
formed unit of Kyocera acquiring QUALCOMM‘s terrestrial-based wire-
less CDMA consumer phone business, including its phone inventory,
manufacturing equipment and customer commitments. Under this agree-
ment, Kyocera has agreed to purchase a majority of its CDMA chipsets
and system software from QUALCOMM for a period of five years. Kyocera
will continue its existing royalty-bearing CDMA license agreement with
QUALCOMM. The transaction, which is subject to regulatory approval and
other customary closing conditions, is expected to close by the end of
February 2000.

As part of this agreement, QUALCOMM will form a new subsidiary
with a substantial number of employees from QUALCOMM Consumer
Products to provide services to Kyocera on a cost-plus basis to support
Kyocera‘s phone business for up to three years. Selected employees of
QUALCOMM Personal Electronics (“QPE”), a 51% owned consolidated
manufacturing subsidiary of the company, will be transferred to the

newly formed unit of Kyocera. QUALCOMM will take an estimated $30
million charge in the first quarter of fiscal 2000 to reflect the difference
between the carrying value of the net assets and the consideration to
be received from Kyocera, less costs to sell.

Kyocera‘s newly formed unit will be a wholly owned subsidiary of
Kyocera International, Inc. of San Diego, the Kyocera group‘s North
American headquarters and holding company. It will be responsible for
integrating QUALCOMM‘s handset design, development, manufacturing
and marketing expertise with Kyocera's global R&D and technical
resources. The new Kyocera unit will lease selected QUALCOMM facilities.

On July 27, 1999, the Company completed an offering of 6,900,000
shares of common stock at a net price of $156.50 per share. The net pro-
ceeds of the offering were approximately $1 billion.

On May 24, 1999 (the “Closing Date”), QUALCOMM sold certain assets
related to the Company’s terrestrial CDMA wireless infrastructure business
to Ericsson pursuant to the March 24, 1999 Asset Purchase Agreement
(the “Agreement”), as amended. The Company and Ericsson also entered
into various license and settlement agreements in connection there-
with. Under the Agreement, (a) QUALCOMM agreed to sell certain assets
relating to its terrestrial CDMA wireless infrastructure business to
Ericsson in exchange for cash and the assumption of certain liabilities,
(b) QUALCOMM and Ericsson agreed to jointly support a single world-
wide CDMA standard with three optional modes for the next generation
of wireless communications, and (c) all of the existing litigation between
the companies was settled, and the companies entered into royalty-
bearing cross-licenses for their respective CDMA patent portfolios,
including cdmaOne, W-CDMA and cdma2000. The cross-licenses are roy-
alty bearing for CDMA subscriber units sold by Ericsson and QUALCOMM.
QUALCOMM also will receive rights to sublicense certain Ericsson
patents, including the patents asserted in the litigation, to QUALCOMM’s
chipset customers. 

As part of the Agreement, QUALCOMM and Ericsson also agreed to
jointly support approval by the ITU and the other standards bodies,
including the U.S. Telecommunications Industry Association (“TIA”) and
the European Telecommunications Standards Institute (“ETSI”), of a 
single CDMA third generation standard that encompasses three optional
modes of operation: (1) Direct Spread Frequency Division Duplex (“FDD”),
(2) Multi-Carrier (“FDD”), and (3) Time Division Duplex (“TDD”). Each
mode supports operation with both GSM MAP and ANSI-41 networks. The
Company believes that rapid adoption of the single CDMA standard is in
the best interests of the industry and will allow each operator to select
which mode of operation to deploy based on marketplace needs. As part
of the Agreements, QUALCOMM and Ericsson each committed to the ITU
and to other standards bodies to license their essential patents for the
single CDMA standard or any of its modes to the rest of the industry on a
fair and reasonable basis free from unfair discrimination. On the Closing
Date, each of the companies notified the ITU and other relevant stan-
dards bodies that any intellectual property rights blocking previously in
force have been withdrawn. 

36
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Pursuant to the Agreement, Ericsson purchased certain assets
related to the Company’s terrestrial CDMA wireless infrastructure busi-
ness, including its R&D resources, located in San Diego, California 
and Boulder, Colorado, and assumed selected customer commitments,
including a portion of future vendor financing obligations, related
assets and personnel. The Company recorded charges of $66 million to
reflect the difference between the carrying value of the net assets and
the consideration received from Ericsson, less costs to sell. Total con-
sideration will be based on a final determination of net assets as of the
Closing Date. 

QUALCOMM has received notice from Ericsson that Ericsson intends
to dispute the determination of the purchase price under the Agreement,
pursuant to which Ericsson acquired certain assets related to the
Company’s terrestrial wireless infrastructure business in May 1999.
QUALCOMM has also received notice from Ericsson that Ericsson
intends to assert claims for indemnification under the Agreement.
QUALCOMM and Ericsson are having on-going discussions aimed at
potentially resolving these claims. In the event the parties are unable
to resolve these claims, they are subject to dispute resolution proce-
dures set forth in the Agreement. Although there can be no assurance
that the resolution of these claims will not have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s results of operations, liquidity or financial
position, the Company believes the claims are without merit and will
defend them vigorously.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Company will extend up to $400 mil-
lion in financing for possible future sales by Ericsson of cdmaOne or
cdma2000 infrastructure equipment and related services to specific
customers in certain geographic areas, including Brazil, Chile, Russia,
and Mexico, or in other areas selected by Ericsson. Such commitments
are subject to the customers meeting certain conditions established in
the financing arrangements and, in most cases, to Ericsson also financing
a portion of such cdmaOne or cdma2000 sales. Commitments represent
the estimated amounts to be financed under these arrangements, how-
ever, actual financing may be in lesser amounts.

The Company has retained certain terrestrial CDMA wireless infra-
structure business contracts. Equipment sales and deployment
services under these contracts may be subcontracted to Ericsson. The
Company has ceased its development and manufacture of terrestrial-
based infrastructure base stations and has no present intention to
re-enter that business. Accordingly, the Company reassessed the
recoverability of the carrying value of remaining assets relating to its
terrestrial CDMA wireless infrastructure business. The Company
recorded charges of $43 million in other operating expenses during fiscal
1999 to reduce the carrying value of certain other assets to their
approximate net realizable value related to its terrestrial CDMA wire-
less infrastructure business. The Company also recorded $52 million in
non-operating charges, including $37 million in reserves provided for
financial guarantees on projects which the Company will no longer
pursue as a result of the Ericsson transaction and $15 million related to
the write-off of TOU assets.

The Company and Ericsson announced that certain compensa-
tion benefits would be provided to employees transferred to Ericsson. 
The Company recorded a $74 million charge in other operating expenses
during fiscal 1999 relating to its share of the employee compensa-
tion benefits.

On September 29, 1999, Leap Wireless announced its intention to
withdraw its support for Metrosvyaz, Ltd. (“Metrosvyaz”), an investee
in Russia, and that such withdrawal would result in the write-off of its
investment in that entity. As a result of Leap Wireless’ decision, the
Company recorded a $51 million charge related to the impairment of
receivables and products and deployment services placed with
Metrosvyaz for which the Company had not yet recognized revenue,
including $17 million in other non-operating expenses related to the
impairment of non-trade receivables.

On October 11, 1999, Globalstar officially introduced its mobile
and fixed telephone service, which is expected to bring affordable,
high-quality telephony service to virtually any place on earth. The
satellite-based telecommunications system is initiating a phased roll-out
of service in regions of the world covered by its first nine operational
gateways, or ground stations. Globalstar initially will provide limited
distribution of service to selected individuals during “friendly users”
trials in the United States, Canada, Brazil, Argentina, China, Korea,
South Africa and parts of Europe, allowing service providers to make
final adjustments and refinements before launching full commercial
service over the next few months. During this period, marketing, distri-
bution and customer care systems in these locations will be tested and
adjusted based on feedback from early users, with the goal of provid-
ing high quality service when Globalstar is more broadly introduced
around the world in the coming months.

On November 22, 1999, Globalstar announced the successful launch
of an additional four LEO satellites, bringing the total number of Globalstar
satellites now in space to 48. Globalstar remains on schedule to launch
an additional four satellites to complete its planned constellation of 
48 satellites and four in-orbit spares.

During fiscal 1999, the Company recorded $111 million in unrealized
gains, net of taxes, on available-for-sale securities. The gain was
recorded in other comprehensive income as a component of equity. 

Fiscal 1999 Compared to Fiscal 1998 
Total revenues for fiscal 1999 were $3,937 million, an increase of 

$589 million over total revenues of $3,348 million for fiscal 1998.
Revenue growth for 1999 was primarily due to increased sales of CDMA
chipsets and phone products, significant growth in royalties and
deployment of commercial gateways in the Globalstar System.

Cost of revenues for fiscal 1999, which consisted primarily of cost of
sales of CDMA chipsets and phone products, was $2,485 million com-
pared to $2,333 million for fiscal 1998. The dollar increase in costs
primarily reflects increased shipments of phone products and deploy-
ment of commercial gateways. The decrease in cost of revenues as a
percentage of revenues to 63% in fiscal 1999 from 70% in fiscal 1998 pri-
marily reflects operational efficiencies, volume discounts obtained
from suppliers and increased royalty revenue. Cost of revenues as a
percentage of revenues may fluctuate in future quarters depending on
mix of products sold, competitive pricing, new product introduction
costs and other factors.
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For fiscal 1999 research and development expenses were $381 million
or 10% of revenues, compared to $349 million or 10% of revenues for
fiscal 1998. The dollar increase was primarily due to new chipset product
initiatives and software development efforts, offset by a decrease in
terrestrial CDMA wireless infrastructure product research and develop-
ment as a result of the sale of the business in May 1999.

For fiscal 1999, selling, general and administrative expenses were
$426 million or 11% of revenues, compared to $410 million or 12% of
revenues for fiscal 1998. The dollar increase for fiscal 1999 was 
primarily attributable to continued growth in personnel and associated
overhead expenses necessary to support the overall growth in the
Company’s operations and increased patent and information technolo-
gy expenses, offset by a decrease in marketing expense for terrestrial
CDMA wireless infrastructure products, including reduced headcount
and proposal activity.

During fiscal 1999, other operating expenses were $240 million,
compared to $12 million for fiscal 1998. In May 1999, the Company sold
certain assets related to its terrestrial CDMA wireless infrastructure
business to Ericsson. Other operating expenses during fiscal 1999 were
comprised primarily of $74 million in compensation benefits provided
to employees transferred to Ericsson, $66 million in charges to reflect
the difference between the carrying value of the net assets to be sold
and the net consideration received and various license and settlement
agreements in connection therewith, $43 million in charges to reduce
the carrying value of certain other assets related to its terrestrial CDMA
wireless infrastructure business, $34 million related to the impairment
of receivables and other assets in connection with Leap Wireless’
decision to withdraw its support for Metrosvyaz, and $15 million in
restructuring charges. 

During fiscal 1998, the Company acquired substantially all of the
assets of Now Software, Inc. for $10 million. In connection with this
asset purchase, acquired in-process research and development of 
$7 million, representing the fair value of software products still in the
development stage that had not yet reached technological feasibility,
was expensed at the acquisition date. This expense was included in
other operating expenses. Also during the same period, the Company
recorded a $5 million non-cash charge to operations relating to the
impairment of leased manufacturing equipment that is no longer used
in the manufacturing process. The $5 million charge represented the
estimated total cost of related lease obligations, net of estimated
recoveries.

For fiscal 1999, interest expense was $15 million compared to 
$8 million for fiscal 1998. This increase is the result of increased bank
borrowings during fiscal 1999.

Investment income, net was $25 million in fiscal 1999 compared to
investment expense, net of $47 million for fiscal 1998. During fiscal
1999, the Company recognized interest income of $50 million, minority
interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries of $13 million, and $15
million equity in losses of investees as compared to interest income of
$39 million, minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries of
$48 million, and $21 million in equity in losses of investees in fiscal
1998. The minority interest represents other parties’ or stockholders’
share of the income or losses of consolidated subsidiaries, including
QPE, a joint venture with Sony. Minority interest for fiscal 1998 includes
the impact of restructuring QPE. Equity in losses of investees for all
periods indicated relates to the Company’s ownership interests in
domestic and international CDMA based wireless telecommunications
businesses and joint ventures. The majority of these investments were
transferred to Leap Wireless as part of the spin-off. The Company also
recorded a $20 million non-cash charge to write-off its investment in
NextWave Telecom Inc. during fiscal 1998 as a result of subsidiaries of
NextWave Telecom, Inc. filing for bankruptcy protection under Chapter
11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code in June 1998. 

Distributions on Trust Convertible Preferred Securities of $39 million
in each of fiscal 1999 and fiscal 1998 relate to the private placement 
of $660 million of 53/4% Trust Convertible Preferred Securities by 
QUALCOMM in February 1997.

During fiscal 1999, the Company recorded $69 million in non-operat-
ing charges, including $37 million in reserves provided for financial
guarantees on projects which the Company will no longer pursue as a
result of the Ericsson transaction, $17 million related to the impairment
of non-trade receivables from Metrosvyaz, and $15 million related to
the write off of TOU assets.

Income tax expense was $106 million for fiscal 1999 compared 
to $40 million for fiscal 1998, resulting primarily from higher pretax
earnings and a higher effective tax rate for fiscal 1999 as compared to
fiscal 1998. The annual effective tax rate for fiscal 1999 was 35%,
excluding the effect of the reinstatement of the 1998 R&D tax credit
recorded in fiscal 1999, compared to 30% for fiscal 1998. The higher 
tax rate was a result of higher earnings relative to the growth of R&D
tax credits.
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QUALCOMM SEGMENT RESULTS 

The following should be read in conjunction with the 1999 financial
results of each reporting segment as detailed in Note 15, “Segment
Information” of the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes.

CDMA Technologies Segment (QCT)
The QCT segment is a major supplier of components to manufactur-

ers that need to design CDMA into their phones or infrastructure
equipment. QCT continues its tradition of helping manufacturers pro-
duce smaller and more affordable products by bringing new chipsets to
the market with more functionality in a substantially smaller package
size. QCT’s CDMA ASIC products include Mobile Station Modem
(“MSM™”) chips for telephone handsets, Cell Site Modem (“CSM™”)
chips for infrastructure base stations and a number of related chips that
make digital voice transmission and processing possible.

Segment revenues increased 29% to $1,133 million and earnings
before taxes increased 66% to $428 million. Revenue and earnings
before taxes growth was primarily due to increased customer demand
for CDMA chipsets in the United States, Korea, and Japan and to new
product releases. Over 39 million MSM chipsets were sold in fiscal
1999, contributing to the significant growth in both the revenue and
earnings before tax for the fiscal year ended September 1999. MSM
chipset sales increased by more than 20 million over the prior year, an
increase of 160%. 

In September 1999, QCT announced an alliance with Lucent
Technologies to commercialize a wireless technology designed to
increase the capacity and data capabilities of Lucent’s network equip-
ment based on CDMA.

In October 1999, QCT announced the development of MSM chipset
and system software solutions that will feature integrated support for
wireless position location technology. Called gpsOne, this MSM solu-
tion is intended to provide a highly cost-effective solution for wireless
position technology in a mobile handset for CDMA cellular and PCS net-
works. In October 1999, QCT also announced further development plans
for MSM solutions that will support the single worldwide CDMA stan-
dard for third generation systems. The new chipsets and systems will
pave the way for QUALCOMM to deliver complete solutions to acceler-
ate the global deployment of third generation CDMA products and
services. These solutions will enable manufacturers and operators
worldwide to easily and effectively evolve their products and services
based on local market requirements and deliver a new breed of fea-
ture-rich, voice and data-centric wireless devices furthering the
growth of the wireless industry.

Technology Licensing Segment (QTL)
QTL provides licenses to third parties related to the design, manu-

facture and sale of products using the Company’s technologies.
Segment revenues increased 57% to $454 million and earnings

before taxes increased 58% to $405 million. Revenue and earnings
before taxes growth was primarily due to royalties paid from licensees
due to an increase in worldwide demand for CDMA technologies.

Wireless Systems Segment (QWS)
QWS designs, manufactures, markets and deploys infrastructure and

handset products for use in terrestrial and non-terrestrial CDMA wire-
less and satellite networks and provides satellite-based two-way data
messaging and position reporting equipment and services to trans-
portation companies.

Segment revenues decreased 10% to $940 million and earnings
before taxes increased 138% to $20 million. Revenue decreased due to
the sale of certain assets of the Company’s terrestrial CDMA wireless
infrastructure business in May 1999 to Ericsson. Earnings before taxes
growth was primarily due to deployment of Globalstar gateways and
OmniTRACS domestic unit demand from existing customers and
increase in messaging revenue due to expansion in customer base,
offset by the impact of the sale of infrastructure contracts to Ericsson.

In October 1999, QWS announced Chinese government approval 
of its contract with Guangdong South Satellite Telecommunications
Service Co., Ltd. (“SST”), a subsidiary of Guangdong Nanfang
Communications Group, to provide satellite data services in China.
SST will offer QUALCOMM’s OmniTRACS mobile information manage-
ment system to China’s transportation industry. In August 1999, QWS
also announced a joint venture with AUTOTRAC Comércio e
Telecomunicacões S.A. of Brazil to bring the OmniTRACS mobile infor-
mation management system to Argentina. This OmniTRACS system will
provide two-way satellite-based communications, including real-time
Global Positioning System (“GPS”) monitoring and a satellite communi-
cations system to allow the transfer of data to and from a vehicle while
en route.

Consumer Products Segment (QCP)
QCP designs, manufactures and markets wireless handsets 

and accessories using CDMA technology for use in mobile and fixed 
wireless networks.

Segment revenues increased 72% to $1,470 million and earnings
before taxes increased 76% to a $40 million loss. Revenue and earnings
before taxes growth was primarily due to an increase in demand 
for CDMA handsets, new product releases, expanded manufacturing
facilities with entrance into the Brazilian market and improved manu-
facturing efficiencies.
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In October 1999, QCP announced that Oracle Corporation, the world’s
leading supplier of software for information management technology,
has chosen QUALCOMM’s pdQ smartphone as one of the key platforms
for its Customer Relationship Management (“CRM”) mobile sales and
service applications. Oracle CRM 3I is a complete suite of products for
managing all aspects of customer relations, from marketing to sales to
service. With Oracle’s mobile sales and services applications, the pdQ
smartphone provides enterprise companies with a completely portable
management tool, from customer and contact data to sales forecasting
and opportunity tracking plus clear CDMA voice capabilities.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

On July 27, 1999, the Company completed an offering of 6,900,000
shares of common stock at a net price of $156.50 per share. The net pro-
ceeds of the offering were approximately $1 billion. The Company
anticipates that its cash and cash equivalents and investments bal-
ances of $1,685 million at September 30, 1999, together with the net
proceeds of the offering, including interest earned thereon, will be
used to fund working and fixed capital requirements, including facili-
ties related to the expansion of its operations, financing for customers
of CDMA infrastructure products in accordance with the Agreement
with Ericsson, and investment in joint ventures or other companies and
other assets to support the growth of its business. In the event addi-
tional needs for cash arise, the Company may raise additional funds
from a combination of sources including potential debt and equity
issuance. There can, however, be no assurance that additional financ-
ing will be available on acceptable terms or at all. In addition, the
Company’s credit facility, as well as notes and indentures, place
restrictions on the Company’s ability to incur additional indebtedness
which could adversely affect its ability to raise additional capital
through debt financing.

The Company has an unsecured credit facility (“Credit Facility”)
under which banks are committed to make up to $400 million in revolv-
ing loans to the Company. The Credit Facility expires in March 2001. The
Facility may be extended on an annual basis upon maturity. The
Company is currently obligated to pay commitment fees equal to 0.175%
per annum on the unused amount of the Credit Facility. The Credit
Facility includes certain restrictive financial and operating covenants.
At September 30, 1999, there were no amounts or letters of credit issued
outstanding under the Credit Facility. The Company cancelled a $200
million credit facility on August 2, 1999.

In fiscal 1999, $182 million in cash was provided by operating activ-
ities, compared to $25 million used by operating activities in fiscal 1998.
Cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 1999 includes $554 million
of net cash flow provided by operations offset by $372 million of net
working capital requirements. The improved cash flow from operations 

primarily reflects the increase in net income resulting from increased
revenues and gross margins. Net working capital requirements of $372
million primarily reflect increases in accounts receivable and finance
receivables which were primarily offset by a decrease in inventories
and an increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The
increase in accounts and finance receivables in fiscal 1999 reflects the
continued growth in products and component sales, and the deferral of
contract payments under the development agreement with Globalstar.
The increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities are primarily
attributable to the growth of the business. 

Investments in capital expenditures and other entities totaled
$224 million in fiscal 1999, compared to $429 million in fiscal 1998.
Significant components in fiscal 1999 consisted of the purchase of $180
million of capital assets and the investment of $44 million in entities 
in which the Company holds less than a 50% interest. The Company
expects to continue making significant investments in capital assets,
including new facilities and building improvements, throughout 
fiscal 2000.

In fiscal 1999, the Company’s financing activities provided $1,270
million. Proceeds from the issuance of common stock under the
Company’s stock option and employee stock purchase plans provided
$1,312 million, offset by a $39 million net repayment of bank lines of
credit. In fiscal 1998, the Company’s financing activities provided net
cash of $86 million, including $52 million from the issuance of common
stock under the Company’s stock option and employee stock purchase
plans and $41 million in net borrowing under bank lines of credit.

During March 1998, the Company agreed to defer up to $100 million
of contract payments, with interest accruing at 53/4% capitalized quar-
terly, as customer financing under its development contract with
Globalstar. Financed amounts outstanding as of January 1, 2000, will be
repaid in eight equal quarterly installments commencing as of that
date, with final payment due October 1, 2001, accompanied by all then
unpaid accrued interest. During the first quarter of fiscal 2000, the
Company expects to finalize negotiations with Globalstar which could
result in the deferral of up to $400 million of future contract payments
under the development agreement, including $240 million in trade
receivables which were reclassified to non-current finance receiv-
ables at September 30, 1999. Such deferrals will be interest bearing and
paid by Globalstar over a period not exceeding four years from the date
of the deferral. At September 30, 1999, approximately $349 million in
interest bearing financed amounts and approximately $171 million 
in accounts receivable, including $59 million in unbilled receivables,
were outstanding from Globalstar.
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At September 30, 1999, commitments to extend long-term financing
for possible future sales to customers, other than Globalstar, totaled
approximately $420 million, which the Company expects to fund over
the next five years. Such commitments are subject to the customers
meeting certain conditions established in the financing arrangements.
Commitments represent the estimated amounts to be financed under
these arrangements; actual financing may be in lesser amounts.
Pursuant to the Ericsson Agreement, the Company will extend up 
to $400 million in financing for possible future sales by Ericsson.
Commitments outstanding at September 30, 1999 include the commit-
ment to Ericsson.

The Company has issued a letter of credit to support a guarantee of
up to $22.5 million of Globalstar borrowings under an existing bank
financing agreement. The guarantee will expire in December 2000. The
letter of credit is collateralized by a commensurate amount of the
Company’s investments in debt securities. At September 30, 1999,
Globalstar had no borrowings outstanding under the existing bank
financing agreement.

In addition to the letter of credit on behalf of Globalstar, the
Company has $21 million of letters of credit and $103 million of other
financial guarantees outstanding as of September 30, 1999, none of
which are collateralized.

As part of the Company’s strategy of supporting the commercialization
and sale of its CDMA technology and products, the Company may from
time to time enter into strategic alliances with domestic and interna-
tional emerging wireless telecommunications operating companies.
These alliances often involve the investment by QUALCOMM of substantial
capital in the operating company. At September 30, 1999, the Company’s
investments include Shinsegi Telecom Inc. (Korea), Vesper, S.A.
(Brazil), Vesper Sao Paulo, S.A. (Brazil), and Wireless Knowledge, L.L.C.
(a Delaware limited liability company). Funding commitments related
to these investments total $119 million at September 30, 1999 which the
Company expects to fund over three years. Such commitments are sub-
ject to the joint ventures meeting certain commitments; actual equity
funding may be in lesser amounts.

On October 29, 1999, the Company and Pegaso Telecomunicaciones
(“Pegaso”) executed a commitment letter, subject to Pegaso share-
holder approval, in which the Company agreed to provide up to $500
million of debt financing to Pegaso and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Pegaso Comunicaciones y Sistemas, a CDMA wireless operating
company in Mexico. The debt financing would consist of a $250 million
senior secured facility and a $250 million unsecured facility. The
Company currently has guaranteed a $100 million facility that would be
refinanced by the $250 million senior secured facility. The debt facili-
ties will have final maturities of seven to eight years.

QUALCOMM has a funding commitment to Leap Wireless in the form
of a $265 million secured credit facility, which consists of two sub-
facilities. The first sub-facility enables Leap Wireless to borrow up to
$35 million from QUALCOMM, solely to meet the normal working capital
and operating expenses of Leap Wireless, including salaries, overhead
and credit facility fees, but excluding, among other things, strategic
capital investments in wireless operators, substantial acquisitions of
capital products, and/or the acquisition of telecommunications licens-
es. The other sub-facility enables Leap Wireless to borrow up to $230
million from QUALCOMM, solely to use as investment capital to make
certain identified portfolio investments. Amounts borrowed under 
the credit facility will be due and payable on September 23, 2006. 
QUALCOMM has a first priority security interest in, subject to minor
exceptions, substantially all of the assets of Leap Wireless for so long
as any amounts are outstanding under the credit facility. Amounts bor-
rowed under the credit facility bear interest at a variable rate equal to
LIBOR plus 5.25% per annum. Interest is payable quarterly beginning
September 30, 2001; prior to such time, accrued interest shall be added
to the principal amount outstanding. At September 30, 1999, $126 million
was outstanding under this facility.

In October 1999, 1,803,792 Trust Convertible Preferred Securities
were converted into 2,482,739 shares of common stock. The conversion
resulted in an approximate $90 million reduction in the recorded oblig-
ation to Trust Convertible Preferred Securities holders. The Company
has the right and intends to redeem the Trust Convertible Preferred
Securities on or after March 4, 2000. The holders of the Trust
Convertible Preferred Securities have the option to convert the securi-
ties into common stock or to redeem the securities at the initial
conversion price. A premium is payable over the conversion price if the
Company redeems prior to March 4, 2002. Upon conversion of all out-
standing Trust Convertible Preferred Securities, the approximately $660
million in Trust Convertible Preferred Securities will convert into 
common stock on or after March 4, 2000.

On November 10, 1999 QUALCOMM entered into an agreement with
Korea Telecom Freetel (“KT Freetel”) pursuant to which QUALCOMM
agreed to invest approximately $200 million in KT Freetel to purchase
1.95% of KT Freetel’s common stock and zero coupon bonds of KT
Freetel with warrants to purchase additional common shares. KT
Freetel has agreed to commercially deploy HDR technology, subject 
to the successful completion of technical and marketing trials. 
If KT Freetel meets certain obligations related to HDR technology, 
QUALCOMM is required to purchase the shares underlying the warrants,
for which the bond could be used as payment in full.
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September 30

1999 1998

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 660,016 $ 175,846
Investments 954,415 127,478
Accounts receivable, net 883,640 612,209
Finance receivables 26,377 56,201
Inventories, net 257,941 386,536
Other current assets 195,849 178,950

Total current assets 2,978,238 1,537,220
Property, plant and equipment, net 555,991 609,682
Investments 70,495 —
Finance receivables, net 548,482 287,751
Other assets 381,744 132,060

Total assets $ 4,534,950 $ 2,566,713

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ’  EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 705,208 $ 660,428 
Unearned revenue 56,070 67,123 
Bank lines of credit 112,000 151,000
Current portion of long-term debt 3,099 3,058

Total current liabilities 876,377 881,609
Long-term debt 795 3,863
Other liabilities 74,872 25,115

Total liabilities 952,044 910,587

Commitments and contingencies (Note 14)

Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries (Note 11) 51,596 38,530 

Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable Trust Convertible Preferred
Securities of a subsidiary trust holding solely debt securities of the Company 659,555 660,000

Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; issuable in series; 8,000

shares authorized; none outstanding at September 30, 1999 and 1998 — —
Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 300,000 shares authorized; 161,591

and 141,181 shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 1999 and 1998 (Note 16) 16 14 
Paid-in capital 2,587,948 959,260 
Retained earnings 200,879 —
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 82,912 (1,678)

Total stockholders’ equity 2,871,755 957,596

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 4,534,950 $ 2,566,713

See accompanying notes.
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(In thousands, except per share data) QUALCOMM Incorporated

C O N S O L I D AT E D  S TAT E M E N T S  O F  I N C O M E

Years Ended September 30

1999 1998 1997

Revenues $ 3,937,299 $ 3,347,870 $ 2,096,365 

Operating expenses:
Cost of revenues 2,485,072 2,333,399 1,518,006
Research and development 381,139 349,483 235,922
Selling, general and administrative 425,941 410,347 236,188
Other 240,007 11,976 8,792

Total operating expenses 3,532,159 3,105,205 1,998,908

Operating income 405,140 242,665 97,457
Interest expense (14,698) (8,058) (11,012)
Investment income (expense), net 24,576 (46,663) 45,266 
Distributions on Trust Convertible

Preferred Securities of subsidiary trust (39,297) (39,270) (23,277)
Other (69,035) — — 

Income before income taxes 306,686 148,674 108,434 
Income tax expense (105,807) (40,142) (16,500)

Net income $ 200,879 $ 108,532 $ 91,934 

Net earnings per common share:
Basic $ 1.35 $ 0.78 $ 0.68 

Diluted $ 1.24 $ 0.73 $ 0.64 

Shares used in per share calculations:
Basic 148,678 138,406 134,670

Diluted 162,472 147,924 143,774

See accompanying notes.
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(In thousands) QUALCOMM Incorporated

C O N S O L I D AT E D  S TAT E M E N T S  O F  C A S H  F L O W S

Years Ended September 30

1999 1998 1997

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income $ 200,879 $ 108,532 $ 91,934 
Depreciation and amortization 158,429 141,892 93,598
Acquired in-process research and development — 6,976 —
Restructuring, impairments and other non-cash charges 269,449 25,000 8,792
Gain on sale of trading securities — — (13,400)
Gain on sale of available-for-sale securities (5,663) — —
Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries 13,066 48,366 2,979 
Equity in losses of investees 15,140 20,731 — 
Deferred income tax benefit (96,595) (55,581) (62,086)
Increase (decrease) in cash resulting from changes in:

Accounts receivable, net (275,846) (166,827) (227,949)
Finance receivables, net (304,546) (232,451) (111,501)
Inventories 40,102 (161,380) (53,645)
Other assets (7,048) (66,603) (36,416)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 173,807 274,819 222,068 
Unearned revenue (10,495) 22,039 31,858 

Other liabilities 11,554 9,820 11,745 
Proceeds from sale of trading securities — — 23,129 
Purchase of trading securities — — (9,729)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 182,233 (24,667) (28,623)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Capital expenditures (180,237) (321,566) (163,115)
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments (858,108) (269,833) (978,745)
Maturities of held-to-maturity investments 150,873 702,376 662,862 
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities 7,163 — — 
Issuance of notes receivable (171,982) (124,765) — 
Collection of notes receivable 45,754 — — 
Disposition (acquisition) of assets, net of liabilities 98,097 (9,992) — 
Investments in other entities (43,568) (107,225) (57,887)
Other items, net (3,350) (2,995) —

Net cash used by investing activities (955,358) (134,000) (536,885)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net (repayments) borrowings under bank lines of credit (39,000) 41,000 29,300
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 1,311,925 51,556 32,445
Proceeds from issuance of Trust Convertible Preferred Securities of

subsidiary trust, net of $18,624 deferred offering costs — — 641,376
Spin-off of Leap Wireless International, Inc. — (10,000) —
Other items, net (2,621) 3,120 1,081

Net cash provided by financing activities 1,270,304 85,676 704,202

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (13,009) — —

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 484,170 (72,991) 138,694
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 175,846 248,837 110,143

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 660,016 $ 175,846 $ 248,837

See accompanying notes.



(In thousands) QUALCOMM Incorporated

C O N S O L I D AT E D  S TAT E M E N T S  O F  S T O C K H O L D E R S ’  E Q U I T Y

Accumulated Other
Common Stock Paid-in Retained Comprehensive

Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Total

BALANCE AT SEPTEMBER 30,  1996 133,070 $ 14 $ 819,049 $ 25,864 $ (14) $ 844,913

Net income — — — 91,934 — 91,934
Exercise of stock options 2,416 — 19,905 — — 19,905
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options — — 54,812 — — 54,812
Issuance for Employee Stock Purchase and

Executive Retirement Plans 762 — 12,540 — — 12,540 
Foreign currency translation — — — — 74 74 

BALANCE AT SEPTEMBER 30,  1997 136,248 14 906,306 117,798 60 1,024,178

Net income — — — 108,532 — 108,532
Exercise of stock options 2,580 — 32,148 — — 32,148 
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options — — 17,125 — — 17,125 
Issuance for Employee Stock Purchase and 

Executive Retirement Plans 943 — 19,408 — — 19,408 
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of 

warrant (Note 8) 1,410 — — — — — 
Foreign currency translation — — — — (1,738) (1,738)
Spin-off of Leap Wireless International, Inc. (Note 2) — — (15,727) (226,330) — (242,057)

BALANCE AT SEPTEMBER 30,  1998 141,181 14 959,260 — (1,678) 957,596 

Net income — — — 200,879 — 200,879 
Exercise of stock options 12,249 1 205,227 — — 205,228
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options — — 290,817 — — 290,817 
Issuance for Employee Stock Purchase and

Executive Retirement Plans 1,249 — 31,571 — — 31,571
Stock based compensation expense — — 8,613 — — 8,613 
Issuance of common stock 6,900 1 1,079,314 — — 1,079,315 
Issuance of common stock upon conversion 

of Trust Convertible Preferred Securities 12 — 445 — — 445
Foreign currency translation — — — — (26,100) (26,100)
Spin-off of Leap Wireless International, Inc. (Note 2) — — 12,701 — — 12,701 
Change in unrealized gain on securities,

net of income taxes of $74,410 — — — — 110,690 110,690

BALANCE AT SEPTEMBER 30,  1999 161,591 $ 16 $ 2,587,948 $ 200,879 $ 82,912 $ 2,871,755 

See accompanying notes.
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QUALCOMM Incorporated

N O T E S  T O  C O N S O L I D AT E D  F I N A N C I A L  S TAT E M E N T S

THE COMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company
QUALCOMM Incorporated (the “Company” or “QUALCOMM”), a

Delaware corporation, designs, develops manufactures and markets
digital wireless communications products and services based on its
Code Division Multiple Access (“CDMA”) technology. The Company
licenses and receives royalty payments on its CDMA technology from
major domestic and international telecommunications suppliers. The
Company has contracts with Globalstar L.P. (“Globalstar”), a partner-
ship formed to build and operate a worldwide, low-Earth-orbit
satellite-based telecommunications system, to design, develop and
manufacture consumer and ground communications equipment. 

Principles of Consolidation
The Company’s consolidated financial statements include the

assets, liabilities and results of operations of majority-owned sub-
sidiaries. The ownership of the other interest holders is reflected as
minority interest. All significant intercompany accounts and transac-
tions have been eliminated.

Financial Statement Preparation
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally

accepted accounting principles requires management to make esti-
mates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to
conform with the current year presentation.

Fiscal Year
The Company operates and reports using a fiscal year ending on the

last Sunday in September. For presentation purposes, the Company has
indicated its fiscal year as ending on September 30.

Revenues
Revenues on product sales are generally recognized at the time

units are shipped and over the period during which message and war-
ranty services are provided, except for shipments under arrangements
involving significant acceptance requirements. Under such arrange-
ments, revenue is recognized when the Company has substantially met
its performance obligations. Revenue from long-term contracts and
revenue earned under license and development agreements with 
continuing performance obligations is recognized using the percent-
age-of-completion method, based either on costs incurred to date
compared with total estimated costs at completion or using a units of
delivery methodology. Billings on uncompleted contracts in excess of
incurred cost and accrued profits are classified as unearned revenue.
Estimated contract losses are recognized when determined. 

Non-refundable license fees are recognized when delivery require-
ments have been met and collection is probable. Royalty revenue is
recorded as earned in accordance with the specific terms of each
license agreement when reasonable estimates of such amounts can be
made. Beginning with the second quarter of fiscal 1998, the Company
began to accrue its estimate of certain royalty revenues earned that
previously could not be reasonably estimated prior to being reported by
its licensees.

Concentrations
A significant portion of the Company’s revenues are concentrated

with a limited number of customers as the worldwide market for wire-
less telephone systems and products is dominated by a small number of
large corporations and government agencies. The Company also derives
significant revenues from the North American trucking industry, partic-
ularly providers of long-haul transportation of goods and equipment.

Revenues from international customers, consisting of export sales
and license and royalty fees, were approximately 38%, 34% and 30% of
total revenues in fiscal 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. Such rev-
enues included $1,041 million, $697 million and $522 million from Asia,
respectively. During fiscal 1998, sales to one South Korean customer
comprised 11% of consolidated revenues. During fiscal 1999, 1998 and
1997, revenues from Globalstar (Note 11) accounted for 11%, 11% and
10% of revenues, respectively. 

Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original

maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and
cash equivalents include money market funds, certificates of deposit,
commercial paper and loan participations. The carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to the short maturities of these instruments.

The Company’s policy is to place its cash, cash equivalents and
investments with high quality financial institutions, government agen-
cies and corporate entities and to limit the amount of credit exposure.

Investments
Management determines the appropriate classification of mar-

ketable securities at the time of purchase and re-evaluates such
designation as of each balance sheet date. Held-to-maturity securities
are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.
Available-for-sale securities are stated at market value as determined
by the most recently traded price of each security at the balance sheet
date. The net unrealized gains or losses on available-for-sale securi-
ties are reported as a component of comprehensive income (loss), net
of tax. The specific identification method is used to compute the real-
ized gains and losses on debt and equity securities.

Warrants
The Company holds warrants to purchase equity interests in certain

other companies. Warrants to purchase equity interests are carried 
at cost. 

1
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QUALCOMM Incorporated

N O T E S  T O  C O N S O L I D AT E D  F I N A N C I A L  S TAT E M E N T S

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market using the 

first-in, first-out method.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated

or amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives. Direct external and internal computer software development
costs subsequent to the preliminary stage of development are capital-
ized. Buildings and building improvements are depreciated over thirty
years and fifteen years, respectively. Leasehold improvements are
amortized over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the remaining
term of the related lease. Other property, plant and equipment have use-
ful lives ranging from two to five years. Maintenance, repairs and minor
renewals and betterments are charged to expense.

Investments in Other Entities
Investments in corporate entities with less than a 20% voting inter-

est are generally accounted for under the cost method. The Company
uses the equity method to account for investments in corporate entities
in which it has a voting interest of 20% to 50%, or in which it otherwise
has the ability to exercise significant influence, and for less than 50.1%
ownership interests in partnerships. Under the equity method, the
investment is originally recorded at cost and adjusted to recognize the
Company’s share of net earnings or losses of the investee, limited to the
extent of the Company’s investment in, advances to and financial guar-
antees for the investee.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are recorded at cost and amortized over their esti-

mated useful lives, which currently range from three to twenty years.
During November 1997, the Company acquired substantially all the

assets of Now Software, Inc., a developer of advanced scheduling and
calendaring software products, for $10 million. In connection with this
asset purchase, acquired in-process research and development of 
$7 million, representing the fair value of software products still in the
development stage that had not yet reached technological feasibility,
was expensed at the acquisition date.

Long-Lived Assets
The Company reviews long-lived assets and certain identifiable

intangibles for impairment whenever events or changes in circum-
stances indicate that the total amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when estimated future
cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventu-
al disposition are less than its carrying amount.

Warranty
Estimated future warranty obligations related to certain products

are provided by charges to operations in the period in which the relat-
ed revenue is recognized.

Stock-Based Compensation
The Company measures compensation expense for its stock-based

employee and non-employee directors compensation plans using the
intrinsic value method and provides pro forma disclosures of net
income and net earnings per common share as if the fair value method
had been applied in measuring compensation expense.

Equity instruments issued for goods or services to non-employees
are accounted for at fair value and are marked to market until a perfor-
mance commitment date is reached.

Foreign Currency
Local currencies are generally considered to be the functional cur-

rency for operations outside the United States, except in countries
treated as highly inflationary. Assets and liabilities are translated at
year-end exchange rates; income and expenses are translated at aver-
age rates of exchange prevailing during the year. The functional
currency of the Company’s foreign investees that operate in highly
inflationary economies is the U.S. dollar. The monetary assets and lia-
bilities of these foreign investees are translated into U.S. dollars 
at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date. Revenues,
expenses, gains and losses are translated at the average exchange
rate for the period, and non-monetary assets and liabilities are trans-
lated at historical rates. Resulting remeasurement gains or losses of
these foreign investees are recognized in the statement of income.
During fiscal 1999, a significant devaluation of the Brazilian real resulted
in a $25 million translation loss which was recorded as a component of
other comprehensive income.

The Company enters into foreign currency forward contracts to
hedge certain foreign currency transactions and probable anticipated
foreign currency transactions. Gains and losses arising from foreign
currency forward contracts offset gains and losses resulting from the
underlying hedged transaction. The Company had no foreign currency
forward contracts outstanding as of September 30, 1999 or 1998. During
fiscal 1999, net foreign currency transaction gains were not material.
During fiscal 1998 and 1997, net foreign currency transaction gains
included in the Company’s statements of income totaled approximately
$6 million and $1 million, respectively.

Income Taxes
Current income tax expense is the amount of income taxes expected

to be payable for the current year, prior to the recognition of benefits
from stock option deductions. A deferred tax asset and/or liability is
computed for both the expected future impact of differences between
the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities and for
the expected future tax benefit to be derived from tax loss and tax credit
carry forwards. Valuation allowances are established when necessary
to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to “more likely
than not” be realized in future tax returns. Tax law and rate changes are
reflected in income in the period such changes are enacted. 
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N O T E S  T O  C O N S O L I D AT E D  F I N A N C I A L  S TAT E M E N T S

Comprehensive Income
The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

No. 130 (“FAS 130”), “Reporting Comprehensive Income,” in the first
quarter of fiscal 1999. As required by FAS 130, the Company displays the
accumulated balance of other comprehensive income or loss separate-
ly in the equity section of the consolidated balance sheets. Prior year
financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current
year presentation. Total comprehensive income, which is comprised of
net income and other comprehensive income (loss), amounted to
approximately $285 million, $107 million and $92 million for fiscal years
1999, 1998, and 1997, respectively. Components of accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) consist of the following (in thousands):

Years Ended September 30,
1999 1998 1997

Foreign currency translation $ (27,778) $ (1,678) $ 60
Change in unrealized gain on
securities, net of income taxes 110,690 — —

$ 82,912 $ (1,678) $ 60

Stock Split
On April 14, 1999, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a two-

for-one stock split of the Company’s common stock in the form of a
stock dividend. The stock dividend was distributed on May 10, 1999 to
stockholders of record on April 21, 1999. On November 2, 1999, the
Company‘s Board of Directors approved, subject to stockholders‘
approval, a four-for-one stock split of the Company‘s common stock and
an increase in the number of authorized shares of common stock to
three billion shares. The Board of Directors also authorized a special
meeting of stockholders for the purposes of approving the stock split
and the proposed share increase. The special stockholder‘s meeting
was held on December 20, 1999. Stockholders approved the stock split
and the increase in the authorized number of shares. The stock divi-
dend was distributed on December 31, 1999 to stockholders of record
on December 20, 1999. Stockholders’ equity has been restated to give
retroactive recognition to the stock split for all periods presented by
reclassifying the par value of the additional shares arising from the
split from paid-in capital to common stock. All references in the finan-
cial statements and notes to number of shares and per share amounts
have been restated to reflect this stock split.

Net Earnings Per Common Share
Basic earnings per common share are calculated by dividing net

income by the weighted average number of common shares outstand-
ing during the reporting period. Diluted earnings per common share
(“diluted EPS”) reflect the potential dilutive effect, determined by the
treasury stock method, of additional common shares that are issuable
upon exercise of outstanding stock options and warrants, as follows (in
thousands):

Years Ended September 30,
1999 1998 1997

Options 13,794 8,248 7,720
Warrants — 1,270 1,384

13,794 9,518 9,104

Options outstanding during the years ended September 30, 1999,
1998 and 1997 to purchase approximately 3,373,000, 7,161,000, and
3,526,000 shares of common stock, respectively, were not included in
the computation of diluted EPS because the options’ exercise prices
were greater than the average market prices of the common stock dur-
ing the period and, therefore, the effect would be anti-dilutive. The
conversion of the Trust Convertible Preferred Securities (Note 7) 
is not assumed for purposes of computing diluted EPS for fiscal 1999,
1998 and 1997 since its effect would be anti-dilutive.

Future Accounting Requirements
In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)

issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 (“FAS
133”), “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.”
In May 1999, the FASB voted to delay the effective date of FAS 133 by
one year. The Company will be required to adopt FAS 133 for fiscal year
2001. This statement establishes a new model for accounting 
for derivatives and hedging activities. Under FAS 133, all derivatives
must be recognized as assets and liabilities and measured at fair value.
The Company has not completed its determination of the impact of the
adoption of this new accounting standard on its consolidated financial
position or results of operations.

SPIN-OFF OF LEAP WIRELESS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

On September 23, 1998, the Company completed the spin-off and 
distribution (the “Distribution” or “Leap Wireless Spin-off”) to its
stockholders of shares of Leap Wireless International, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (“Leap Wireless”). 

In connection with the Distribution, the Company transferred to
Leap Wireless its joint venture and equity interests in certain domestic
and international emerging terrestrial-based wireless telecommunica-
tions operating companies and recorded a $17 million liability in
connection with its agreement to transfer its ownership interest in
Telesystems of Ukraine (“TOU”), a wireless telecommunications com-
pany in Ukraine, and its working capital loan receivable from TOU
(“TOU assets”) to Leap Wireless if certain events occurred within 18
months of the Leap Wireless Spin-off. During the first six months of fis-
cal 1999, the Company provided an additional $2 million working
capital loan to TOU and recorded 100% of the losses of TOU, net of elim-
inations, because the other investors’ equity interests were depleted.
During March 1999, the Company reassessed the recoverability of TOU
assets in light of recent developments affecting the TOU business and
the disposition of other assets related to the terrestrial CDMA wireless
infrastructure business (Note 13). As a result, the Company recorded a
$15 million non-operating charge to write off the TOU assets, as well as
a $12 million charge to operations to write off other assets related to
the TOU contract (Note 13), and the adjusted liability to transfer TOU to
Leap Wireless of $15 million was reversed against equity as an adjust-
ment to the Distribution. As of September 30, 1999, all TOU assets were
written off.

2
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N O T E S  T O  C O N S O L I D AT E D  F I N A N C I A L  S TAT E M E N T S

In connection with the Distribution, Leap Wireless issued to QUALCOMM
a warrant to purchase 5,500,000 shares of Leap Wireless common stock
at $6.10625 per share. The Company recorded the warrant at its prede-
cessor basis of $24 million net of the related deferred tax liability. In
March 1999, the Company agreed to reduce the number of shares under
warrant to 4,500,000 in exchange for $3 million in consideration from
Leap Wireless, resulting in a pre-tax loss of $3 million. The Company
agreed to the cancellation to enable Leap Wireless to meet Federal
Communications Commission regulatory requirements. The estimated
fair value of the warrant at September 30, 1999 is $90 million, as calculated
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.

At September 30, 1999, the Company holds warrants to purchase
approximately 1,400,000 shares of the Class B common stock (approxi-
mately 13.9% of equity) of Chase Telecommunications, Inc. (“Chase”),
an investee of Leap Wireless, at a price of $0.01 per share. The warrants
vest based upon a percentage of usage of a $25 million credit facility
provided to Chase by QUALCOMM and subsequently transferred to Leap
Wireless. At September 30, 1999, warrants to purchase approximately
1,300,000 shares are vested. The warrants will expire in 2008. Because
Chase is a private company, it is not practicable to estimate the fair
value of the warrants. There are no recorded amounts related to these
warrants at September 30, 1999.

On September 29, 1999, Leap Wireless announced its intention to
withdraw its support for Metrosvyaz, Ltd. (“Metrosvyaz”), an investee
in Russia, and that such withdrawal would result in the write-off of its
investment in that entity. As a result of Leap Wireless’ decision, the
Company recorded a $51 million charge related to the impairment of
receivables and products and deployment services placed with
Metrosvyaz for which the Company had not yet recognized revenue,
including $17 million in other non-operating expenses related to the
impairment of non-trade receivables.

INVESTMENTS 

At September 30, 1999 and 1998, investments consisted of the fol-
lowing (in thousands):

Current Noncurrent

September 30, September 30,

1999 1998 1999 1998

Held-to-maturity:
Certificates of deposit $ 193,534 $ 1,388 $ 10,000 —
Commercial paper 465,953 19,576 — —
U.S. government securities — 64,949 — —
Corporate medium-term notes 107,662 41,565 57,564 —

767,149 127,478 67,564 — 
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities 187,266 — 2,931 —

$ 954,415 $ 127,478 $ 70,495 $ —

At September 30, 1999, held-to-maturity debt securities of $767 mil-
lion and $68 million have maturities of one year or less and maturities
of more than one year through five years, respectively.

At September 30, 1999, the cost basis and gross unrealized gains 
on available-for-sale securities are approximately $5 million and $185
million, respectively.

COMPOSITION OF CERTAIN FINANCIAL STATEMENT CAPTIONS

September 30,
1999 1998

(In thousands)

Accounts receivable, net:
Trade, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of 
$22,276 and $21,933, respectively $ 674,211 $ 459,324

Long-term contracts:
Billed 128,208 101,868
Unbilled 69,409 49,784

Other 11,812 1,233

$ 883,640 $ 612,209

Unbilled receivables represent costs and profits recorded in excess
of amounts billable pursuant to contract provisions and are expected to
be realized within one year.

Predominantly all of the trade receivables at September 30, 1999 and
1998 are from customers in the wireless telecommunications industry.

September 30,
1999 1998

(In thousands)

Finance receivables $ 585,482 $ 348,907
Allowance for doubtful receivables (10,623) (4,955)

574,859 343,952
Current maturities 26,377 56,201

Noncurrent finance receivables, net $ 548,482 $ 287,751

Finance receivables result from sales under arrangements in which
the Company has agreed to provide customers with long-term interest
bearing debt financing for the purchase of equipment and/or services.
Such financing is generally collateralized by the related equipment. 

At September 30, 1999 and 1998, the fair value of finance receivables
approximated $541 million and $336 million, respectively. The fair value
of finance receivables is estimated by discounting the future cash
flows using current interest rates at which similar financing would be
provided to similar customers for the same remaining maturities.

Maturities of finance receivables at September 30, 1999 are as 
follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

2000 $ 26,377
2001 160,948
2002 198,260
2003 81,547
2004 70,297
Thereafter 48,053

$ 585,482

4
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At September 30, 1999, commitments to extend long-term financing
for possible future sales to customers, other than Globalstar (Note 11),
totaled approximately $420 million, which the Company expects to fund
over the next five years. Such commitments are subject to the cus-
tomers meeting certain conditions established in the financing
arrangements. Commitments represent the estimated amounts to be
financed under these arrangements; actual financing may be in lesser
amounts. These commitments include the total finance commitments
associated with the sale of certain assets to Ericsson (Note 13). 

September 30,
1999 1998

(In thousands)

Inventories, net:
Raw materials $ 161,481 $ 180,957 
Work-in-process 51,003 81,479 
Finished goods 45,457 124,100 

$ 257,941 $ 386,536 

Property, plant and equipment, net:
Land $ 36,310 $ 36,310 
Buildings and improvements 285,762 250,883 
Computer equipment 244,605 340,623 
Machinery and equipment 274,353 257,516 
Furniture and office equipment 16,515 26,910 
Leasehold improvements 33,207 27,074 

890,752 939,316
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (334,761) (329,634)

$ 555,991 $ 609,682

At September 30, 1999, buildings and leasehold improvements with
a net book value of $54 million, including accumulated depreciation of
$14 million, are leased or held for lease to third parties.

INVESTMENT INCOME (EXPENSE),  NET

Investment income (expense), net for the years ended September 30
is comprised as follows (in thousands):

1999 1998 1997

Interest income $ 50,392 $ 39,484 $ 34,845
Realized gains on marketable securities 5,663 2,950 13,400
Loss on cancellation of warrants (Note 2) (3,273) — —
Write-off of investment in other entity — (20,000) —
Minority interest in income of consolidated
subsidiaries (13,066) (48,366) (2,979)

Equity in losses of investees (15,140) (20,731) —

$ 24,576 $ (46,663) $ 45,266

DEBT AND CREDIT FACILITIES

On March 11, 1998, the Company and a group of banks entered into
a $400 million unsecured revolving credit facility (the “Credit Facility”)
under which the banks are committed to make loans to the Company
and to extend letters of credit on behalf of the Company. The Credit
Facility expires in March 2001, and may be extended on an annual basis
thereafter, subject to approval of a requisite percentage of the lenders.
At the Company’s option, interest is at the applicable LIBOR rate or the
greater of the administrative agent’s reference rate or 0.5% plus the 

Federal Funds effective rate, each plus an applicable margin. The
amount available for borrowing is reduced by letters of credit out-
standing. The Company is currently obligated to pay commitment fees
equal to 0.175% per annum on the unused amount of the Credit Facility.
The Credit Facility includes certain restrictive financial and operating
covenants. The weighted average interest rates were 5.8% and 6.2% on
outstanding borrowings during fiscal 1999 and 1998, respectively. At
September 30, 1999, there were no amounts or letters of credit out-
standing under the Credit Facility. At September 30, 1998, there were
borrowings of $80 million and letters of credit of $8 million outstanding
under the Credit Facility; the weighted average interest rate on out-
standing borrowings was 6.2%. 

Under terms of two identical revolving credit agreements, negotiat-
ed in 1996 and expiring in July 2000, QUALCOMM Personal Electronics
(“QPE”) (Note 11) may borrow a total of $150 million. Borrowings under
the facilities, which are drawn in equal amounts, totaled $112 million
and $71 million at September 30, 1999 and 1998, respectively. The inter-
est rate under the facilities is at the applicable LIBOR rate plus 0.5%.
The weighted average interest rate on outstanding borrowings was
5.9%, 6.2% and 6.0% during fiscal 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively, and
6.0% and 6.4% at September 30, 1999 and 1998, respectively. The credit
facilities include covenants which, among other things, require QPE to
maintain a minimum tangible net worth. The credit facilities are non-
recourse to the Company and the minority interest holder in QPE and are
collateralized by QPE’s accounts receivable which, at September 30,
1999, on a consolidated basis, amounted to $65 million. Under the terms
of the credit facilities, amounts that QPE may borrow outside of the
credit facilities are limited.

The fair value of the Company’s bank lines of credit are estimated
based on comparison with similar issues or current rates offered to the
Company for debt of the same remaining maturities. At September 30,
1999 and 1998, the estimated fair value of the Company’s bank lines of
credit approximated their carrying value.

The annual principal installments for capital leases and other oblig-
ations are $3 million in fiscal 2000 and $1 million in 2001.

Cash amounts paid for interest were $11 million in each of fiscal
years 1999, 1998 and 1997.

TRUST CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED SECURITIES OF SUBSIDIARY

In February 1997, QUALCOMM Financial Trust I (the “Trust”), the
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary trust created under the laws of
the State of Delaware, completed a private placement of $660 million 
of 53/4% Trust Convertible Preferred Securities. The sole assets of the
Trust are QUALCOMM Incorporated 53/4% Convertible Subordinated
Debentures due February 24, 2012. The obligations of the Trust related
to the Trust Convertible Preferred Securities are fully and unconditionally
guaranteed by the Company. The Trust Convertible Preferred Securities
are convertible into Company common stock at the rate of 1.3764 shares
of Company common stock for each Trust Convertible Preferred Security
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(equivalent to a conversion price of $36.328215 per share of common
stock). Distributions on the Trust Convertible Preferred Securities are
payable quarterly by the Trust. The Trust Convertible Preferred Securities
are subject to mandatory redemption on February 24, 2012, at a redemp-
tion price of $50 per preferred security. The Company has the right and
intends to redeem the Trust Convertible Preferred Securities, in whole or
in part, on or after March 4, 2000. The Company will pay a premium over
the initial conversion price if securities are redeemed prior to March 4,
2002. As a result of the Leap Wireless Spin-off, and pursuant to a resolu-
tion of the Board of Directors of QUALCOMM, each QUALCOMM Trust
Convertible Preferred Security is convertible, subject and pursuant to the
terms of the Convertible Subordinated Debentures, into both QUALCOMM
common stock and Leap Wireless common stock at the rate of 1.3764 and
0.17205 shares, respectively, for each QUALCOMM Trust Convertible
Preferred Security.

The Company may cause the Trust to defer the payment of distribu-
tions for successive periods of up to twenty consecutive quarters.
During such periods, accrued distributions on the Trust Convertible
Preferred Securities will compound quarterly and the Company may not
declare or pay distributions on its common stock or debt securities that
rank equal or junior to the Convertible Subordinated Debentures. Also
during such period, if holders of Trust Convertible Preferred Securities
convert such securities into the Company’s common stock, the holder
will not receive any cash related to the deferred distribution.

During fiscal 1997, issuance costs of $19 million related to the Trust
Convertible Preferred Securities were deferred and are being amor-
tized over the period until mandatory redemption of the securities in
February 2012.

During fiscal 1999, 8,910 Trust Convertible Preferred Securities were
converted into common stock. The Company has reserved 18,156,000
shares of common stock as of September 30, 1999 for possible conver-
sion of the Trust Convertible Preferred Securities at the option of the
holders (Note 16).

As of September 30, 1999 and 1998, the estimated fair value of the
Trust Convertible Preferred Securities was approximately $3,571 mil-
lion and $552 million, respectively, based on the last reported bid price.

CAPITAL STOCK

Preferred Stock
The Company has 8,000,000 shares of preferred stock authorized for

issuance in one or more series, at a par value of $0.0001 per share. In
conjunction with the distribution of Preferred Share Purchase Rights,
the Company’s Board of Directors designated 1,500,000 shares of pre-
ferred stock as Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock and
reserved such shares for issuance upon exercise of the Preferred
Share Purchase Rights. At September 30, 1999 and 1998, no shares of
preferred stock were outstanding.

Common Stock Warrants
In November 1991, the Company issued seven-year warrants to 

purchase 1,564,000 shares of common stock at $2.75 per share to a com-
pany for the relinquishment of all its claims to participate in certain
future royalties, license fees and profits. During August 1998, the
Company issued 1,410,000 shares of common stock upon the full net
exercise of the warrants.

Preferred Share Purchase Rights Plan
During fiscal 1996, the Board of Directors implemented a Preferred

Share Purchase Rights Plan (“Rights Plan”) to protect stockholders’
rights in the event of a proposed takeover of the Company. Under the
Rights Plan, the Company declared a dividend of one preferred share
purchase right (a “Right”) for each share of the Company’s common
stock outstanding as of October 16, 1995. Similar Rights will generally
be issued in respect to common stock subsequently issued. Pursuant to
the Rights Plan, each Right entitles the registered holder to purchase
from the Company a one one-hundredth share of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock, $0.0001 par value per share, at a pur-
chase price of $250. In November 1999, the Rights Plan was amended to
provide that the purchase price be set at $1,600, subject to adjustment
to $400 upon consummation of the four-for-one stock split approved by
the Company’s Board of Directors in November 1999 (Note 16). The
Rights are exercisable only if a person or group (an “Acquiring
Person”) acquires beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the
Company’s outstanding shares of common stock. Upon exercise, holders,
other than an Acquiring Person, will have the right, subject to termina-
tion, to receive the Company’s common stock or other securities, cash
or other assets having a market value, as defined, equal to twice such
purchase price. The Rights, which expire on September 25, 2005, are
redeemable in whole, but not in part, at the Company’s option at any
time for a price of $0.005 per Right.

INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax provision for the years ended
September 30 are as follows (in thousands):

1999 1998 1997

Current provision:
Federal $ 143,534 $ 86,488 $ 71,891
State 22,211 1,916 2,288
Foreign 36,657 7,319 4,407

202,402 95,723 78,586 

Deferred benefit:
Federal (86,996) (46,862) (51,186)
State (9,599) (8,719) (10,900)

(96,595) (55,581) (62,086)

$ 105,807 $ 40,142 $ 16,500 
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The following is a reconciliation from the expected statutory federal
income tax expense to the Company’s actual income tax expense for
the years ended September 30 (in thousands):

1999 1998 1997

Expected income tax expense at federal
statutory tax rate $ 107,363 $ 52,036 $ 37,956

State income tax expense, net of federal
benefit 15,951 7,732 5,639

Foreign taxes 36,657 7,075 4,407
Permanent differences 2,108 5,754 3,523
Tax benefit from recognition of deferred tax
assets — — (21,531)

Tax credits (56,800) (34,015) (16,201)
Other 528 1,560 2,707

Actual income tax expense $ 105,807 $ 40,142 $ 16,500 

At September 30, 1999 and 1998, the Company had net deferred tax
assets as follows (in thousands):

1999 1998

Income recognition differences $ 116,179 $ 84,793
Unused net operating losses 73,962 1,497
Tax credits 51,864 6,959

$ 242,005 $ 93,249

At September 30, 1999, the Company had unused net operating loss-
es, manufacturing, research, foreign tax and alternative minimum tax
credits expiring from 2002 through 2019. The unused net operating tax
losses were generated by the exercise of non-qualified employee
stock options.

Cash amounts paid for income taxes were $68 million, $58 million
and $18 million for fiscal 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Employee Savings and Retirement Plan
The Company has a 401(k) plan that allows eligible employees to

contribute up to 15% of their salary, subject to annual limits. The
Company matches a portion of the employee contributions and may, at
its discretion, make additional contributions based upon earnings. The
Company’s contribution expense for fiscal 1999, 1998 and 1997 was $17
million, $10 million and $6 million, respectively.

Stock Option Plans
The Board of Directors may grant options to selected employees,

directors and consultants to the Company to purchase shares of the
Company’s common stock at a price not less than the fair market value
of the stock at the date of grant. The 1991 Stock Option Plan (the
“Plan”), as amended, authorizes up to 73,800,000 shares to be granted
no later than August 2001. The Plan provides for the grant of both incen-
tive stock options and non-qualified stock options. Generally, options
outstanding vest over a one to six year period and are exercisable for
up to ten years from the grant date. At September 30, 1999, options for
8,209,000 shares were exercisable at prices ranging from $7.58 to $34.22
for an aggregate exercise price of $151 million.

The Company has a Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan
which authorizes 2,140,000 shares to be granted no later than February
2013. This plan provides for non-qualified stock options to be granted to
non-employee directors at fair market value, vesting over periods not
exceeding five years and are exercisable for up to ten years from the
grant date. At September 30, 1999, options for 800,000 shares were exer-
cisable at prices ranging from $11.13 to $23.54 per share for an
aggregate exercise price of $11 million.

A summary of stock option transactions for the plans follows (num-
ber of shares in thousands):

Options Options Outstanding

Available Number Exercise Price Per Share
for Grant of Shares Range Average

SEPTEMBER 30, 1996 4,210 32,146 $ 0.25 – $ 26.22 $ 15.78
Additional shares reserved 10,800 
Options granted (8,582) 8,582 18.75 – 31.19 23.65
Options canceled 1,348 (1,348) 3.41 – 30.13 18.64
Options exercised — (2,416) 0.25 – 23.16 8.22

SEPTEMBER 30, 1997 7,776 36,964 $ 2.50 – $ 31.19 $ 18.00

Additional shares reserved 10,940 
Options granted (12,308) 12,308 22.28 – 34.98 29.10
Options canceled 1,618 (1,618) 7.75 – 34.98 21.61
Options exercised — (2,580) 3.41 – 28.88 12.47

SEPTEMBER 23, 1998(a) 8,026 45,074 $ 2.50 – $ 34.98 $ 21.21
Options granted (96) 96 8.99 – 34.22 24.44
Options canceled 26 (26) 20.45 – 31.18 26.93

SEPTEMBER 30, 1998 7,956 45,144 $ 2.45 – $ 34.22 $ 20.75

Additional shares reserved 7,000 
Options granted (4,741) 4,741 19.80 – 192.40 52.12
Options canceled 6,334 (6,334) 2.45 – 117.56 23.39
Options exercised — (12,248) 2.45 – 34.22 17.55 

SEPTEMBER 30, 1999 16,549 31,303 $ 4.37 – $ 192.40 $ 26.23

(a) On September 23, 1998, in connection with the Leap Wireless Spin-off, the Company
adjusted the option exercise prices to maintain the economic value of the options that
existed at the time of the Spin-off. The range and weighted average exercise prices of
options outstanding at September 23, 1998 were $2.45 to $34.22 and $20.75, respectively,
as adjusted in connection with the Leap Wireless Spin-off.

The following table summarizes information about fixed stock options
outstanding at September 30, 1999 (number of shares in thousands):

Options Outstanding
Weighted
Average Options Exercisable

Remaining Weighted Weighted
Contractual Average Average

Range of Number Life Exercise Number Exercise
Exercise Prices of Shares (In Years) Price of Shares Price

$ 4.37 – $ 16.51 6,885 4.6 $ 12.84 4,430 $ 12.53
$ 16.75 – $ 22.46 6,841 6.7 19.81 1,939 19.70
$ 22.50 – $ 27.35 6,242 7.6 24.30 1,602 23.86
$ 27.42 – $ 29.47 5,961 8.7 27.97 691 28.11
$ 29.99 – $ 77.00 4,871 8.6 43.13 347 31.59
$ 95.31 – $ 192.40 503 9.8 136.24 — 0.00 

$ 4.37 – $ 192.40 31,303 7.1 26.23 9,009 18.02
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Employee Stock Purchase Plans
The Company has employee stock purchase plans for all eligible

employees to purchase shares of common stock at 85% of the lower of
the fair market value on the first or the last day of each six-month offer-
ing period. Employees may authorize the Company to withhold up to
15% of their compensation during any offering period, subject to certain
limitations. The 1991 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended,
authorizes up to 8,400,000 shares to be granted no later than August
2001. The 1996 Non-Qualified Employee Stock Purchase Plan autho-
rizes up to 50,000 shares to be granted at anytime. During fiscal 1999,
1998 and 1997, shares totaling 1,193,000, 878,000 and 741,000 were
issued under the plans at an average price of $21.79, $22.07 and $16.89
per share, respectively. At September 30, 1999, 3,437,000 shares were
reserved for future issuance.

Executive Retirement Plans
The Company has voluntary retirement plans that allow eligible

executives to defer up to 100% of their income on a pretax basis. On a
quarterly basis, participants receive up to a 10% match of their deferral
in the Company’s common stock based on the then current market
price, to be issued to the participant upon eligible retirement. The
income deferred and the Company match are unsecured and subject to
the claims of general creditors of the Company. The plans authorize up
to 200,000 shares to be allocated to participants at anytime. During fis-
cal 1999, 1998 and 1997, approximately 55,000, 66,000 and 21,000 shares,
respectively, were allocated under the plans and the Company’s match-
ing contribution during fiscal 1999, 1998 and 1997 amounted to $1
million, $2 million and $1 million, respectively. At September 30, 1999,
45,000 shares were reserved for future allocation.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation 
Pro forma information regarding net income and net earnings per

common share has been estimated at the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model based on the following assumptions:

Employee Stock
Stock Option Plans Purchase Plans

1999 1998 1997 1999 1998 1997

Risk-free interest rate 5.2% 5.5% 6.3% 4.7% 5.1% 5.1%
Volatility 51.0% 50.0% 50.0% 51.0% 50.0% 50.0%
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected life (years) 6.0 6.0 6.0 0.5 0.5 0.5

The Black-Scholes option-pricing model was developed for use in
estimating the fair value of traded options that have no vesting restric-
tions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models
require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the
expected stock price volatility. Because the Company’s options have
characteristics significantly different than those of traded options, and
because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially
affect the fair value estimate, in the opinion of management, the exist-
ing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the
fair value of its options. The weighted average estimated fair values of
stock options granted during fiscal years 1999, 1998 and 1997 were
$28.56, $15.88 and $13.19 per share, respectively. The weighted average
estimated fair values of shares granted under the Employee Stock
Purchase Plans during fiscal years 1999, 1998 and 1997 were $11.18,
$7.95 and $6.79, respectively.

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of
the options is assumed to be amortized to expense over the options’
vesting period. The Company’s pro forma information for the years
ended September 30 are as follows (in thousands, except for net earn-
ings per share):

1999 1998 1997
As reported Pro forma As reported Pro forma As reported Pro forma

Net income $ 200,879 $ 149,100 $ 108,532 $ 57,747 $ 91,934 $ 73,197
Net earnings 
per common
share:
Basic $ 1.35 $ 1.00 $ 0.78 $ 0.42 $ 0.68 $ 0.54
Diluted $ 1.24 $ 0.92 $ 0.73 $ 0.39 $ 0.64 $ 0.51

Pro forma net income for fiscal 1997 includes the recognition of the
tax benefit relating to fiscal 1997 pro forma compensation expense and
the recognition of the previously unrecognized fiscal 1996 tax benefit.
Pro forma net income for fiscal 1998 includes tax effected pro forma
compensation expense of $8 million related to the modification of
options in connection with the Leap Wireless Spin-off. The effects on
pro forma disclosures of applying the fair value method are not likely to
be representative of the effects on pro forma disclosures of future years
because the fair value method is applicable only to options granted
subsequent to September 30, 1995.

INVESTMENTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

QUALCOMM Personal Electronics
In fiscal 1994, a subsidiary of the Company and a subsidiary of Sony

Electronics Inc. (“Sony Electronics”) entered into a joint venture gen-
eral partnership, QPE, to manufacture CDMA consumer equipment for
cellular, PCS and other wireless applications. The Company owns 51%
of the joint venture and consolidates QPE in its financial statements.
Sony Electronics’ 49% general partnership share in QPE is presented as
a minority interest in the Company’s financial statements.
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During fiscal 1999, 1998 and 1997, QPE sales to Sony Electronics
amounted to $249 million, $684 million and $57 million, respectively.
Purchases of inventory and capital equipment from Sony Electronics
and other Sony affiliates amounted to $79 million and $1 million,
respectively during fiscal 1999, $69 million and $69 million, respective-
ly, during fiscal 1998 and $92 million and $6 million, respectively, during
fiscal 1997. At September 30, 1999 and 1998, outstanding accounts
receivable from Sony Electronics amounted to $26 million and $52 million,
respectively, and accounts payable to all Sony Electronics affiliated
companies amounted to $14 million and $51 million, respectively.

Globalstar L.P.
Through partnership interests held in certain intermediate limited

partnerships, the Company owns a 6.4% partnership interest in
Globalstar, a limited partnership formed to develop, own and operate
the Globalstar low-Earth-orbit satellite system utilizing CDMA technology
(“the Globalstar System”). The Company accounts for its investment
under the equity method.

As a result of the intermediate limited partnership agreements,
Globalstar profits and losses are allocated to the Company in accor-
dance with its percentage ownership interest, provided that no loss
shall be allocated to the Company if such allocation would create neg-
ative balances in the Company’s intermediate partnership adjusted
capital accounts. For financial reporting purposes, the Company’s
investment in the intermediate partnerships had no basis during each
of fiscal 1999, 1998 and 1997, and, as a result, the Company has not
recorded any equity losses during those respective fiscal years.

Subject to certain conditions, the Company, through an intermediate
partnership, may be required to purchase approximately 97,000 addi-
tional shares from another investor in Globalstar for up to $5 million, a
price discounted from the price paid by such investor. The Company is
unable to predict the likelihood of the occurrence of any of the condi-
tions which would require the additional investment.

In return for providing a guarantee under a Globalstar bank financ-
ing agreement (Note 14), the Company received warrants to purchase
734,262 shares of common stock in Globalstar Telecommunications
Limited (“GTL”), a general partner in Globalstar, at an exercise price of
$13.25 per share (shares and exercise price reflect a two-for-one stock
split of GTL common stock that occurred in May 1997). On February 12,
1997, the Company and GTL entered into an arrangement under which
GTL agreed to accelerate the vesting and exercisability of the
Company’s warrants to purchase GTL common stock. The Company
exercised such warrants in March 1997, and classified the GTL shares
as trading securities, consistent with the Company’s intent to sell the
GTL shares on a near term basis. The Company sold the GTL common
stock during the third quarter of fiscal 1997 resulting in an aggregate
realized gain of $13 million.

The Company and Globalstar have entered into a development
agreement under which Globalstar is funding the Company to design
and develop the consumer equipment and ground communications seg-
ments of the Globalstar System and production agreements to
manufacture and supply ground communication and consumer equip-
ment and to supply related services to Globalstar. Revenues resulting
from the agreements with Globalstar for fiscal 1999, 1998 and 1997 were
$435 million, $373 million and $205 million, respectively. In March 1998,
the Company agreed to defer up to $100 million of contract payments,
with interest accruing at 53/4% capitalized quarterly, as customer
financing under its development contract with Globalstar. Financed
amounts outstanding as of January 1, 2000 will be repaid in eight equal
quarterly installments commencing as of that date, with final payment
due October 1, 2001, accompanied by all then unpaid accrued interest. 

The Company expects to finalize negotiations with Globalstar dur-
ing the first quarter of fiscal 2000 which could result in the deferral of
up to $400 million of current and future contract payments under the
development agreement, including $240 million in trade receivables
which were reclassified to non-current finance receivables at
September 30, 1999. Such deferrals are expected to be interest bearing
and paid by Globalstar over a period not exceeding four years from the
deferral. At September 30, 1999 and 1998, approximately $349 million
and $90 million in interest bearing financed amounts and approximately
$171 million and $141 million in accounts receivable, including $59 
million and $47 million in unbilled receivables, were outstanding from
Globalstar, respectively. 

The value of the Company’s investment in and future business with
Globalstar, as well as its ability to collect outstanding receivables from
Globalstar, depends on the success of Globalstar and the Globalstar
System. From its inception, Globalstar has incurred net losses and those
losses are expected to continue through the start of service. A sub-
stantial shortfall in meeting Globalstar’s capital needs could prevent
completion of the Globalstar System and could adversely affect the
Company’s results of operations, liquidity and financial position. 
In addition, Globalstar can terminate its development agreement 
with the Company if Globalstar abandons its efforts to develop the
Globalstar System.

The Globalstar System is exposed to the risks inherent in a large-
scale complex telecommunications system employing advanced
technologies which have never been integrated in a single system for
commercial use. The failure to develop, produce and implement the
system, or any of its diverse and dispersed elements as required, could
delay the in-service or full constellation date of the Globalstar System
or render it unable to perform at levels required for commercial success.
Globalstar may encounter various problems, delays and expenses,
many of which may be beyond Globalstar’s control.
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NextWave Telecom Inc.
In November 1995, the Company paid $5 million to purchase

1,666,666 shares of Series B Common Stock and provided a $25 million
short-term note receivable to NextWave Telecom Inc. (“NextWave”), a
privately held company. As part of the share purchase, the Company
also received warrants to buy 1,111,111 additional shares of Series B
Common Stock at $3 per share. During March 1996, the Company
converted $15 million of the note receivable into 5,000,000 shares of
Series B Common Stock. The conversion was treated as a non-cash
transaction for the consolidated statement of cash flows.

In June 1998, the Company recorded a $20 million non-cash charge
to write-off its investment in NextWave. Subsidiaries of NextWave
filed for bankruptcy protection in June 1998 under Chapter 11 of the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code. There is significant uncertainty as to the outcome of
the bankruptcy proceedings.

Other Joint Ventures
The Company has entered into other domestic and international

joint ventures providing advanced communications systems, products
and services based on wireless technology. The Company’s combined
investment in these joint ventures as of September 30, 1999 and 1998,
amounted to $51 million and $27 million, respectively. At September 30,
1999, effective ownership interests in the joint ventures ranged from 
2% to 34%. Unfunded equity commitments totaled $119 million at
September 30, 1999, which the Company expects to fund over three
years. Such commitments are subject to the joint ventures meeting 
certain conditions; actual equity funding may be in lesser amounts.

It is not practicable to estimate the total fair value of the Company’s
investment in these other joint ventures as the investments are pre-
dominantly closely-held and not publicly traded. The Company’s
investees are principally engaged in development of new products,
commercial deployment and expansion of wireless networks and ser-
vices. An investee’s failure to successfully develop and provide
competitive products and services due to lack of financing, market
demand or unfavorable economic environment could adversely affect
the value of the Company’s investment in the investee. There can be no
assurance that the investees will be successful in their efforts.

RESTRUCTURING

During January 1999, the Company completed a review of its operating
structure to identify opportunities to improve operating effectiveness.
As a result of this review, management approved a formal restructuring
plan, and the Company recorded a restructuring charge to operations of
$15 million. The restructuring plan was comprised of employee termi-
nation and facility exit costs resulting primarily from the Company’s
plan to exit certain activities in its infrastructure equipment business.
The Company eliminated 651 positions as a result of the plan. Facility
exit costs include approximately $3 million of asset impairments and $1
million of estimated net losses on subleases or lease cancellation
penalties. The Company expects to complete implementation of the
plan by the end of the second quarter of fiscal 2000. The accrued
restructuring costs and amounts charged against the provision as of
September 30, 1999 were as follows (in thousands):

September 30,
Provisions Deductions 1999

Employee termination costs $ 10,162 $ (10,162) $ —
Facility exit costs 4,397 (3,866) 531

Total $ 14,559 $ (14,028) $ 531

DISPOSITION OF ASSETS AND OTHER CHARGES

On the Closing Date, the Company sold certain of its assets related
to its terrestrial CDMA wireless infrastructure business to Ericsson. The
Company and Ericsson also entered into various license and settlement
agreements in connection therewith, pursuant to the March 24, 1999
Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”), as amended. The Company
recorded charges of $66 million in other operating expenses during fis-
cal 1999 to reflect the difference between the carrying value of the net
assets and the consideration received from Ericsson, less costs to sell.
Total consideration will be based on a final determination of net assets
as of the Closing Date. The Company has received notice of Ericsson’s
intention to dispute the purchase price (Note 14).

In addition, the Company and Ericsson agreed to jointly support a
single worldwide CDMA standard with three optional modes for the
next generation of wireless communications and have agreed to settle
all of the existing litigation between the companies and enter into
cross-licenses for portions of their respective CDMA patent portfolios.
As part of the agreements, the Company and Ericsson will each commit
to the International Telecommunication Union (“ITU”) and to other stan-
dards bodies to license their essential patents for the single CDMA
standard or any of its modes to the rest of the industry on a fair and rea-
sonable basis free from unfair discrimination.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Company will extend up to $400 mil-
lion in financing for possible future sales by Ericsson of cdmaOne or
cdma2000 infrastructure equipment and related services to specific
customers in certain geographic areas, including Brazil, Chile, Mexico,
and Russia or in other areas selected by Ericsson. Such commitments
are subject to the customers meeting certain conditions established in
the financing arrangements and, in most cases, to Ericsson also financing
a portion of such cdmaOne or cdma2000 sales. Commitments represent
the estimated amounts to be financed under these arrangements; how-
ever, actual financing may be in lesser amounts.

As a result of the Ericsson transaction, the Company reassessed the
recoverability of the carrying value of remaining assets relating to its
terrestrial CDMA wireless infrastructure business. The Company
recorded charges of $117 million in other operating expenses during
fiscal 1999, including $74 million for compensation benefits provided to
employees transferred to Ericsson, $31 million to reduce the carrying
value of certain other assets to their approximate net realizable value
and $12 million related to the TOU contract (Note 2). The Company also
recorded $52 million in non-operating charges during fiscal 1999,
including $37 million in reserves provided for financial guarantees on
projects which the Company will no longer pursue as a result of the
Ericsson transaction and $15 million related to the write-off of TOU
assets (Note 2).
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The Company leases certain facilities to Ericsson under noncance-
lable operating leases, with provisions for cost-of-living increases.
The leases expire on May 31, 2004 and provide for renewal options
thereafter. Future minimum rentals in each of the next five years from
fiscal 2000 to 2004 are $10 million, $10 million, $10 million, $11 million
and $7 million.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation
On March 5, 1997, the Company filed a complaint against Motorola,

Inc. (“Motorola”). The complaint was filed in response to allegations 
by Motorola that the Company’s then, recently announced, Q phone
infringes design and utility patents held by Motorola as well as trade
dress and common law rights relating to the appearance of certain
Motorola wireless telephone products. The complaint denies such
allegations and seeks a judicial declaration that the Company’s prod-
ucts do not infringe any patents held by Motorola. On March 10, 1997, 
Motorola filed a complaint against the Company (the “Motorola
Complaint”), alleging claims based primarily on the above-alleged
infringement. The Company’s motion to transfer the Motorola Complaint
to the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of California was
granted on April 3, 1997. On April 24, 1997, the court denied Motorola’s
motion for a preliminary injunction thereby permitting the Company to
continue to manufacture, market and sell the Q phone. On April 25, 1997,
Motorola appealed the denial of its motion for a preliminary injunction.
On January 16, 1998 the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit
denied Motorola’s appeal and affirmed the decision of the U.S. District
Court for the Southern District of California refusing Motorola’s request
to enjoin QUALCOMM from manufacturing and selling the Q phone. On
June 4, 1997, Motorola filed another lawsuit alleging infringement by
QUALCOMM of four patents. Three of the patents had already been
alleged in previous litigation between the parties. On August 18, 1997,
Motorola filed another complaint against the Company alleging
infringement by the Company of seven additional patents. All of the
Motorola cases have been consolidated for pretrial proceedings. On
August 6, 1999, the court granted the Company’s motion for summary
judgment that the Q phone does not infringe two of Motorola’s design
patents. On October 5, 1999, the United States District Court in San
Diego granted the Company’s motions for summary judgment that the 
Q phone does not infringe the last two Motorola design patents remain-
ing in the case. As a consequence of these rulings and Motorola’s
decision to drop one utility patent from the case, there are no design
patents and a total of ten utility patents remaining in the case. The
cases have been set for a final pretrial conference in April 2000.
Although there can be no assurance that an unfavorable outcome of the
dispute would not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
results of operations, liquidity or financial position, the Company
believes the claims are without merit and will continue to vigorously
defend the action.

On July 20, 1999, the Company filed a lawsuit against Motorola
seeking a judicial determination that the Company has the right to ter-
minate all licenses granted to Motorola under a 1990 Patent License
Agreement, while retaining all licenses granted by Motorola to the
Company under the same agreement. The Company’s complaint was
filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of
California where the earlier actions between the Company and
Motorola described above have been pending for more than two years.
The complaint alleges that Motorola has committed breaches of the
Patent License Agreement that include pursuing a lawsuit against the
Company for infringement of patents that are in fact licensed to the
Company under the agreement and a failure to grant certain sublicens-
es to the Company in accordance with the terms of the agreement. The
Company’s new filing also seeks a ruling that upon termination of the
Patent License Agreement, the patents formerly licensed to Motorola
would be infringed by CDMA handsets, integrated circuits and network
infrastructure equipment made and sold by Motorola. On August 5, 1999,
the Company amended its complaint to allege that Motorola’s CDMA
wireless phones infringe three patents of the Company. The Company’s
new claims seek damages and an injunction against Motorola’s sale of
infringing phones. Motorola has filed counterclaims alleging breach of
the Patent License Agreement and a DS-CDMA Technology License
Agreement also signed in 1990.

On or about June 5, 1997, Elisra Electronic Systems Ltd. (“Elisra”)
submitted to the International Chamber of Commerce a Request for
Arbitration of a dispute with the Company based upon a Development
and Supply Agreement (“DSA”) entered into between the parties effective
November 15, 1995, alleging that the Company wrongfully terminated
the DSA, seeking monetary damages. The Company thereafter submitted
a Reply and Counterclaim, alleging that Elisra breached the DSA, seek-
ing monetary damages. Subsequently, the parties stipulated that the
dispute be heard before an arbitrator under the jurisdiction of the
American Arbitration Association, and to bifurcate the resolution of lia-
bility issues from damage issues. To date, the arbitrator has heard
testimony regarding the liability or non-liability of the parties, and a
briefing schedule has been set. Although there can be no assurance
that the resolution of these claims will not have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s results of operations, liquidity or financial
position, the Company believes that the claims made by Elisra are with-
out merit and will vigorously defend against the claims.

14
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On October 27, 1998, the Electronics and Telecommunications
Research Institute of Korea (“ETRI”) submitted to the International
Chamber of Commerce a Request for Arbitration (the “Request”) of
a dispute with the Company arising out of a Joint Development
Agreement dated April 30, 1992 (“JDA”) between ETRI and the Company.
In the Request, ETRI alleges that the Company has breached certain pro-
visions of the JDA and seeks monetary damages and an accounting. The
Company filed an answer and counterclaims denying the allegations,
seeking a declaration establishing the termination of the JDA and mon-
etary damages and injunctive relief against ETRI. In accordance with
the JDA, the arbitration will take place in San Diego. No schedule for
the arbitration proceedings has been established. Although there can
be no assurance that the resolution of these claims will not have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations, liquidi-
ty or financial position, the Company believes that the claims are
without merit and will vigorously defend the action.

On February 26, 1999, the Lemelson Medical, Education & Research
Foundation, Limited Partnership, (“Lemelson”) filed an industry-wide
action in the United States District Court for the District of Arizona. The
complaint names a total of 88 parties, including the Company, as defen-
dants and purports to assert claims for infringement of 15 patents. The
complaint alleges that application specific integrated circuit (“ASIC”)
devices sold by the Company, or the processes by which such devices
are manufactured, infringe the asserted patents. On October 1, 1999, the
Company and Lemelson entered into a settlement agreement resolving
all claims made against the Company in the complaint which will not
have a material effect on the financial results of the Company.

On May 6, 1999, Thomas Sprague, a former employee of the Company,
filed a putative class action against the Company, ostensibly on behalf
of himself and those of the Company’s former employees who were
offered employment with Ericsson in conjunction with the sale to
Ericsson of certain of the Company’s infrastructure division assets and
liabilities and who elected not to participate in a Retention Bonus Plan
being offered to such former employees. The complaint was filed in
California Superior Court in and for the County of San Diego and pur-
ports to state eight causes of action arising primarily out of alleged
breaches of the terms of the Company’s 1991 Stock Option Plan, as
amended from time to time. The putative class sought to include former
employees of the Company who, among other things, “have not or 
will not execute the Bonus Retention Plan and accompanying full and
complete release of QUALCOMM.” The complaint seeks an order accel-
erating all unvested stock options for the members of the class. Of the
1,053 transitioning former employees who had unvested stock options,
1,016 elected to participate in the Retention Bonus Plan offered by QUAL-
COMM and Ericsson, which provides several benefits including cash
compensation based upon a portion of the value of their unvested
options, and includes a written release of claims against the Company.
On July 30, 1999, plaintiffs filed a First Amended Complaint incorpo-
rating the allegations set forth in the original complaint, adding two 

new causes of action and expanding the putative class to also include
those former employees who chose to participate in the Bonus
Retention Plan. In October 1999, the court sustained the Company’s
demurrer to the plaintiffs’ cause of action for breach of fiduciary duty.
Counsel for the putative class have indicated that they will be filing a
Second Amended Complaint, including additional class representa-
tives, and substantially the same allegations as the First Amended
Complaint. Although there can be no assurance that an unfavorable out-
come of the dispute would not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s results of operations, liquidity or financial position, the
Company believes the claims are without merit and will vigorously
defend the action. 

On June 29, 1999, GTE Wireless, Incorporated (“GTE”) filed an action
in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia
asserting that wireless telephones sold by the Company infringe a sin-
gle patent allegedly owned by GTE. On September 15, 1999, the court
granted the company’s motion to transfer the action to the United States
District Court for the Southern District of California. Although there can
be no assurance that an unfavorable outcome of the dispute would not
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations,
liquidity or financial position, the Company believes the action is with-
out merit and will vigorously defend the action.

QUALCOMM has received notice from Ericsson that Ericsson intends
to dispute the determination of the purchase price under the Agreement,
pursuant to which Ericsson acquired certain assets related to the
Company’s terrestrial wireless infrastructure business in May 1999.
QUALCOMM has also received notice from Ericsson that Ericsson
intends to assert claims for indemnification under the Agreement.
QUALCOMM and Ericsson are having on-going discussions aimed at
potentially resolving these claims. In the event the parties are unable
to resolve these claims, they are subject to dispute resolution proce-
dures set forth in the Agreement. Although there can be no assurance
that the resolution of these claims will not have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s results of operations, liquidity or financial
position, the Company believes the claims are without merit and will
vigorously defend them.

The Company is engaged in other legal actions arising in the ordi-
nary course of its business and believes that the ultimate outcome of
these actions will not have a material adverse effect on its results of
operations, liquidity or financial position.
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Leap Wireless Commitments
QUALCOMM has a funding commitment to Leap Wireless in the form

of a $265 million secured credit facility, which consists of two sub-
facilities. The first sub-facility enables Leap Wireless to borrow up to
$35 million from QUALCOMM, solely to meet the normal working capital
and operating expenses of Leap Wireless, including salaries, overhead
and credit facility fees, but excluding, among other things, strategic
capital investments in wireless operators, substantial acquisitions 
of capital products, and/or the acquisition of telecommunications licens-
es. The other sub-facility enables Leap Wireless to borrow up to $230
million from QUALCOMM, solely to use as investment capital to make
certain identified portfolio investments. Amounts borrowed under 
the credit facility will be due and payable on September 23, 2006. 
QUALCOMM has a first priority security interest in, subject to minor
exceptions, substantially all of the assets of Leap Wireless for so long
as any amounts are outstanding under the credit facility. Amounts bor-
rowed under the credit facility bear interest at a variable rate equal to
LIBOR plus 5.25% per annum. Interest is payable quarterly beginning
September 30, 2001; prior to such time, accrued interest shall be added
to the principal amount outstanding. At September 30, 1999 and 1998,
$126 million and $5 million were outstanding under this facility, respec-
tively. At September 30, 1999 and 1998, the fair value of the credit
facility approximated the recorded value. The Company estimates fair
value by discounting the future cash flows using current interest rates
at which similar financing would be provided to similar companies for
the same remaining maturities.

Operating Leases
QPE has entered into an operating lease agreement, under which

manufacturing equipment may be leased under separate schedules,
each with approximately five-year terms. The lease agreement is non-
recourse to the Company and the minority interest holder in QPE.
Equipment under lease has both early and end-of-term purchase
options. If the purchase options have not been exercised by the end of
the lease term and if proceeds from the sale of the equipment fall
below specified amounts, QPE may be required to pay certain contin-
gent payments. The maximum amount of contingent payments for
equipment leased as of September 30, 1999 is approximately $55 mil-
lion. Rental expense under this lease, including an accrual for such
contingent payments, amounted to $16 million, $13 million and $13 mil-
lion during fiscal 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. As of September 30,
1999 and 1998, the Company had accrued $33 million and $21 million,
respectively, in other liabilities for such contingent payments. As of
September 30, 1999, future rental payments under the lease, excluding
contingent payments, are $4 million in each of 2000 and 2001 and $1 mil-
lion in 2002.

The Company leases certain of its other facilities and equipment
under noncancelable operating leases, with terms ranging from two to
ten years and with provisions for cost-of-living increases. Rental
expense for these facilities and equipment for fiscal 1999, 1998 and
1997 was $17 million, $11 million and $7 million, respectively. Future
minimum lease payments in each of the next five years from fiscal 2000
through 2004 are $16 million, $14 million, $12 million, $8 million and $5
million, respectively, and $4 million thereafter.

Purchase Obligations
The Company has agreements with certain suppliers to purchase

certain components, and estimates its noncancelable obligations
under these agreements to be approximately $34 million through fiscal
2002. The Company also has a commitment to purchase communica-
tions services for approximately $23 million annually through fiscal
2001 and $2 million in fiscal 2002.

Letters of Credit and Financial Guarantees
The Company has issued a letter of credit to support a guarantee of

up to $22.5 million of Globalstar (Note 11) borrowings under an existing
bank financing agreement. The guarantee will expire in December
2000. The letter of credit is collateralized by a commensurate amount of
the Company’s investments in debt securities. As of September 30, 1999,
Globalstar had no borrowings outstanding under the existing bank
financing agreement.

In addition to the letter of credit on behalf of Globalstar, the
Company has $21 million of letters of credit and $103 million of other
financial guarantees outstanding as of September 30, 1999, none of
which are collateralized.

Performance Guarantees
Certain of the Company’s contracts provide for performance guarantees

to protect customers against late delivery of its products or a failure to
perform. These performance guarantees generally provide for contract
offsets to the extent the products are not delivered by scheduled delivery
dates or the systems fail to meet specified performance criteria. The
Company is dependent in part on the performance of its suppliers and
strategic partners to provide products and services that are the subject
of the guarantees. Thus, the Company’s ability to deliver such products
and services in a timely manner may be outside of its control. If the
Company is unable to meet its performance obligations, the perfor-
mance guarantees could amount to a significant portion of the contract
value and would have a material adverse effect on product margins and
the Company’s results of operations, liquidity and financial position.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 131 (“FAS 131”), “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information,” in fiscal 1999. FAS 131 establishes standards for
reporting information about operating segments in annual financial
statements and requires disclosure of selected information about operating
segments to shareholders. The statement also establishes standards
for related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas
and major customers. Under FAS 131, operating segments are determined
consistent with the way that management organizes and evaluates
financial information internally for making operating decisions and
assessing performance. The adoption of FAS 131 did not affect results of
operations or financial position.

The Company is organized on the basis of products and services.
The Company’s segments are divisions that offer different products and
services. Three segments have been aggregated into the Wireless
Systems segment. Reportable segments are as follows:

“CDMA Technologies” (QCT) – designs and supplies CDMA chipsets
and software solutions.

“Technology Licensing” (QTL) – provides licenses to third parties
related to the design, manufacture and sale of products using the
Company’s CDMA technology.

“Wireless Systems” (QWS) – designs, manufactures, markets and
deploys infrastructure and handset products for use in terrestri-
al and non-terrestrial CDMA wireless and satellite networks and
provides satellite-based two-way data messaging, position
reporting equipment and services to transportation companies.

“Consumer Products” (QCP) – designs, manufactures and markets
wireless handsets and accessories using CDMA technology for
use in mobile and fixed wireless networks.

The Company evaluates the performance of its segments based on
earnings before income taxes (“EBT”). EBT includes the allocation of
certain corporate expenses to the segments. Segment data includes
intersegment revenues. The table below presents information about
reported segments for the years ending September 30 (in thousands):

Reconciling 
QCT QTL QWS QCP Items Total 

1999:
Revenues $ 1,133,422 $ 454,163 $ 939,780 $ 1,469,637 $ (59,703) $ 3,937,299
EBT 427,994 404,947 20,220 (39,983) (506,492) 306,686
Total assets 187,517 91,368 868,143 566,218 2,821,704 4,534,950

1998: 
Revenues $ 879,858 $ 289,934 $ 1,048,957 $ 855,101 $ 274,020 $ 3,347,870
EBT 258,369 256,401 (53,054) (168,714) (144,328) 148,674
Total assets 156,626 49,728 599,166 446,994 1,314,199 2,566,713

1997:
Revenues $ 549,681 $ 215,966 $ 645,325 $ 520,985 $ 164,408 $ 2,096,365
EBT 62,188 195,172 (65,664) (61,505) (21,757) 108,434
Total assets 100,318 11,465 342,357 263,702 1,556,838 2,274,680

Segment assets are comprised of accounts receivable, finance
receivables and inventory. Total segment assets differ from total assets
on a consolidated basis as a result of unallocated corporate assets.

Other reconciling items for the years ended September 30 are com-
prised as follows (in thousands):

1999 1998 1997

Revenues:
Elimination of intersegment revenue $ (382,796) $ (458,259) $ (249,732)
Other products 323,093 732,279 414,140

Reconciling items $ (59,703) $ 274,020 $ 164,408

Earnings before income taxes:
Unallocated corporate expenses $ (337,723) $ (19,413) $ (6,699)
Unallocated interest expense (11,595) (4,579) (5,822)
Unallocated investment income, net 26,610 22,434 48,245 
Distributions on Trust Convertible
Preferred Securities of subsidiary trust (39,297) (39,270) (23,277)
Intracompany profit (130,676) (102,418) (14,022)
Other (13,811) (1,082) (20,182)

Reconciling items $ (506,492) $ (144,328) $ (21,757)

Generally, revenues between operating segments are based on pre-
vailing market rates or an approximation thereof, with the exception of
QCT’s sales to QCP which are recorded by QCP at QCT’s cost.
Intracompany profit eliminations include the elimination of profits
recorded on QCT’s sales to QCP. Unallocated corporate expenses in fis-
cal 1999 include $331 million in charges related to the sale of certain
assets related to the Company’s terrestrial CDMA wireless infrastruc-
ture business to Ericsson, restructuring charges, and the impairment of
assets in connection with Leap Wireless’ decision to withdraw its sup-
port of Metrosvyaz. 

Specified items included in segment EBT for the years ending
September 30 are as follows (in thousands):

QCT QTL QWS QCP

1999:
Revenues from external customers $ 896,484 $ 343,242 $ 928,696 $ 1,445,784
Intersegment revenues 236,938 110,921 11,084 23,853
Interest income __ __ 16,889 __
Equity in losses of investees __ __ (7,074) __

1998:
Revenues from external customers $ 583,111 $ 218,480 $ 1,012,344 $ 801,656
Intersegment revenues 296,747 71,454 36,613 53,445
Equity in losses of investees __ __ (20,551) __

1997:
Revenues from external customers $ 361,502 $ 156,318 $ 645,017 $ 519,388
Intersegment revenues 188,179 59,648 308 1,597

15
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Sales information by geographic area for the years ended
September 30 is as follows (in thousands):

1999 1998 1997

United States $ 2,459,838 $ 2,213,738 $ 1,469,051
South Korea 881,494 633,142 451,989
Other Foreign 595,967 500,990 175,325

$ 3,937,299 $ 3,347,870 $ 2,096,365

The Company distinguishes revenues from external customers by
geographic areas based on customer location.

The net book value of long-lived assets located outside of the United
States was $16 million, $15 million and $1 million at September 30, 1999,
1998 and 1997, respectively.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In October 1999, 1,803,792 Trust Convertible Preferred Securities
were converted into 2,482,739 shares of common stock. The conversion
resulted in an approximate $90 million reduction in the recorded oblig-
ation to Trust Convertible Preferred Securities holders.

On November 2, 1999, the Company’s Board of Directors approved,
subject to stockholders’ approval, a four-for-one stock split of the
Company’s common stock and an increase in the number of authorized
shares of common stock to three billion shares. The Board of Directors
also authorized a special meeting of stockholders for the purposes of
approving the stock split and the proposed share increase. The special
stockholders meeting is expected to be held on or about December 20,
1999. If the stockholders approve the stock split and the proposed
increase in the authorized number of shares, the stock split will be
implemented as soon as practicable following the special meeting.
Common stock shares outstanding (in thousands), giving retroactive
effect to the stock split, at September 30, 1999 and 1998 are 646,363 and
564,726, respectively (unaudited). Pro forma earnings per common
share, giving retroactive effect to the stock split, are as follows (shares
in thousands):

Years Ended September 30,
1999 1998 1997

(unaudited)
Net earnings per common share:
Basic $ 0.34 $ 0.20 $ 0.17 

Diluted $ 0.31 $ 0.18 $ 0.16 

Shares used in per share calculations:
Basic 594,714 553,623 538,681

Diluted 649,889 591,697 575,097

On November 10, 1999, QUALCOMM entered into an agreement with
Korea Telecom Freetel (“KT Freetel”) pursuant to which QUALCOMM
agreed to invest approximately $200 million in KT Freetel to purchase
1.95% of KT Freetel’s common stock and zero coupon bonds of KT
Freetel with warrants to purchase additional common shares. KT
Freetel has agreed to commercially deploy high data rate (“HDR”) tech-
nology, subject to the successful completion of technical and
marketing trials. If KT Freetel meets certain obligations related to HDR
technology, QUALCOMM is required to purchase the shares underlying
the warrants, for which the bond could be used as payment in full.

SUMMARIZED QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following financial information reflects all normal recurring
adjustments which are, in the opinion of management, necessary for a
fair statement of the results of the interim periods. Summarized quar-
terly data for fiscal 1999 and 1998 is as follows (in thousands, except
per share data):

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

1999
Revenues $ 941,223 $ 932,395 $ 1,004,066 $ 1,059,615
Gross profit(1) 298,833 308,620 406,399 438,375
Operating income 77,948 5,189 98,379 223,624
Net income (loss) 48,530 (42,620) 58,948 136,021
Basic net earnings (loss) 
per common share(2) $ 0.34 $ (0.29) $ 0.39 $ 0.86

Diluted net earnings (loss) 
per common share(2) $ 0.33 $ (0.29) $ 0.35 $ 0.73

1998
Revenues $ 785,854 $ 760,553 $ 875,497 $ 925,966
Gross profit(1) 232,239 226,221 250,817 305,194
Operating income 52,895 51,301 53,353 85,116
Net income 36,762 26,011 5,843 39,916
Basic net earnings 
per common share(2) $ 0.27 $ 0.19 $ 0.04 $ 0.28

Diluted net earnings 
per common share(2) $ 0.25 $ 0.18 $ 0.04 $ 0.27 

(1) Gross profit is calculated by subtracting cost of revenues from total revenues.
(2) Earnings per share are computed independently for each of the quarters presented.

Therefore, the sum of the quarterly net earnings per share will not necessarily equal 
the total for the year.

17
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TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS OF QUALCOMM INCORPORATED

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income, of cash flows and of stock-
holders’ equity present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of QUALCOMM Incorporated and its subsidiaries at September 30,
1999 and 1998, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 1999 in con-
formity with generally accepted accounting principles. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above.

San Diego, California
November 10, 1999
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Dr. Irwin Mark Jacobs
Chairman of the Board 
and Chief Executive Officer
Dr. Jacobs has served on
the Board since operations
began in 1985. A co-founder
of the Company, he is Chair-
man of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer, and for-
merly served as President.
Dr. Jacobs held executive
positions at LINKABIT
(M/A-COM LINKABIT after
August 1980), a company he
co-founded. He served as
Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer, President and
Director. He was awarded
the National Medal of
Technology in 1994.

Dr. Andrew J. Viterbi
Vice Chairman of the Board
Dr. Viterbi has served as
the Vice Chairman of the
Board since its inception 
in 1985. A co-founder of the
Company, he also served as
Chief Technical Officer and
is the inventor of the Viterbi
decoder. He held various
executive positions at
LINKABIT (M/A-COM 
LINKABIT after August
1980), a company he 
co-founded. Dr. Viterbi is
currently a member of the
U.S. President‘s IT Advisory
Committee.

Richard Sulpizio
President and Chief
Operating Officer
Mr. Sulpizio is the former
President of QUALCOMM
Wireless Business
Solutions. He formerly
worked with Unisys
Corporation, a computer
and electronics company,
and with Fluor Engineering
and Constructors, imple-
menting computer systems
worldwide. 

Franklin P. Antonio 
Executive Vice President
and Chief Technology
Officer
Mr. Antonio is one of the
founders of QUALCOMM 
and served on the Board
from 1985 until 1989. Prior
to joining QUALCOMM, he
was at LINKABIT (M/A-
COM LINKABIT after
August 1980) where he 
held various technical and
management positions.

Anthony S. Thornley
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Thornley formerly held
financial and information
systems management posi-
tions with Nortel, including
Vice President for Public
Networks and Vice
President for Finance NT
World Trade. He was the
Corporate Controller for
Northern Telecom Ltd. and
worked for Coopers and
Lybrand, LLP.

Steven R. Altman 
Executive Vice President
and General Counsel,
QUALCOMM 
General Manager, 
QUALCOMM 
Technology Licensing
Mr. Altman is actively
involved in structuring and
negotiating QUALCOMM‘s
license agreements, joint
ventures and strategic
alliances.

Gerald L. Beckwith
Senior Vice President, 
QUALCOMM President,
QUALCOMM Wireless
Systems
Mr. Beckwith is the former
President and General
Manager of QUALCOMM‘s
Communications Systems
Division. He served as Vice
President of Commercial
Programs for QUALCOMM
and held various positions
at LINKABIT (M/A-COM
LINKABIT after August 1980).

Dr. Paul E. Jacobs
Senior Vice President, 
QUALCOMM
President, QUALCOMM
Consumer Products
Dr. Jacobs guided the
Consumer Products
Division from start-up to 
its current position as the
second largest domestic
digital handset supplier. He
also serves on the Boards
of QUALCOMM Personal
Electronics and Wireless
Knowledge LLC.

Phil White
Senior Vice President,
QUALCOMM 
President, QUALCOMM
Wireless Business
Solutions
Mr. White chairs the
Corporacion Nacional
Radiodeterminacion, a
satellite communications
provider in Mexico. He 
also serves on the Boards
of Alcatel QUALCOMM,
QUALCOMM Asean Co. Ltd,
QUALCOMM Systems (M)
SDN. BHD and Truckload
Carriers of America.

Donald E. Schrock
Senior Vice President, 
QUALCOMM
President, QUALCOMM
CDMA Technologies
Mr. Schrock heads up the
division, formerly called
ASIC Products, where he
served as Vice President
and General Manager.
Previously he held high
level positions with GM
Hughes Electronics
(Microelectronics
Division), AMCC, Burr
Brown Corporation and
Motorola Semiconductor.

Dr. Daniel L. Sullivan
Senior Vice President, 
Human Resources
Dr. Sullivan served in
senior human resources
positions at Motorola,
Wavetek Corporation and
Bourns Inc. He is a Director
for the San Diego State
University Foundation and
Chair of the University of
California, San Diego,
Jacobs School of
Engineering Corporate
Affiliates.

Kevin J. Kelley
Senior Vice President,
External Affairs
Mr. Kelley heads
QUALCOMM’s Washington,
DC office. He formerly
served as Chief of the 
FCC's Mobile Services
Division, Vice President 
of the Cellular
Telecommunications
Industry Association and
was a partner at Bryan
Cave, an international 
law firm.

Kimberly M. Haile
Senior Vice President 
and General Manager, 
QUALCOMM Digital Media 
Ms. Haile previously served
as Division Council and
Vice President of Operations
for OmniTRACS and the
Communications Systems
Division. She was formerly
a business lawyer in the
San Diego law firm of Gray
Cary Ware & Freidenrich.

Annual Meeting
The annual meeting of stockholders will be held at 9:30
a.m. PST, Tuesday, March 7, 2000 at the Copley Symphony
Hall, 750 B Street, Downtown San Diego. QUALCOMM
product displays will be available for preview starting 
at 8:30 a.m. PST. All stockholders are invited to attend 
the meeting.

Analyst Coverage 
AG Edwards; ABN Amro; CIBC Oppenheimer; Credit Suisse
First Boston; Deutsche Banc Alex Bown; Edward Jones; FAC
Equities; First Union Capital Markets; Goldman Sachs; Paine
Webber; Chase Hambrecht & Quist; JP Morgan; Lehman
Brothers; Merrill Lynch; NationsBank Montgomery;
Prudential Volpe; Salomon Smith Barney; SG Cowen & Co. 

Transfer Agent
Harris Trust Company of California
311 West Monroe Street
Chicago, IL 60606, (312) 588-4157

Independent Accountants
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, San Diego

Corporate Counsel
Cooley Godward LLP, San Diego

Frank E. Rogozienski, Esq.
Secretary of the Board, 
QUALCOMM Incorporated

Stock Information
QUALCOMM Incorporated stock is traded through the
NASDAQ National Market System. Ticker symbol: QCOM 

No cash dividends have been paid on the common stock to
date, and the Company currently intends to retain any
earnings for use in its businesses. 

Stock Price
Fiscal Quarter 1st 2nd 3rd 4th
1999 High $30.00 $59.97 $137.50 $199.00
1999 Low $18.88 $25.31 $54.25 $125.13
1998 High $35.97 $29.22 $30.28 $33.69
1998 Low $22.75 $22.50 $23.32 $20.47

Note: Stock prices have been adjusted for a two-for-one
stock split effective in May 1999.

Additional Information
To receive copies, without charge, of QUALCOMM’s 1999
Form 10-K, which is filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, write to:

Investor Relations
QUALCOMM Incorporated
5775 Morehouse Drive
San Diego, CA 92121-1714

Inquiries from analysts, investors and portfolio managers
seeking additional information about QUALCOMM
Incorporated are invited to contact: 

Julie Cunningham
Vice President, Investor Relations 
Telephone (858) 658-4813 
Facsimile (858) 651-9303
Internet http://www.qualcomm.com

The Company’s financial statements are available on the
Securities and Exchange Commission’s EDGAR system
(www.sec.gov) or via QUALCOMM’s fax back system at
(858) 658-4813. (This system allows for selection and
receipt of facsimile copies of recent Company press
releases and financial reports.)
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Dr. Irwin Mark Jacobs
Dr. Jacobs has served on the
Board since operations began
in 1985. A co-founder of the
Company, he is Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive
Officer, and formerly served 
as President. Dr. Jacobs held
executive positions at 
LINKABIT (M/A-COM LINKABIT
after August 1980), a company
he co-founded. He served as
Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer, President, and Director.
He was awarded the National
Medal of Technology in 1994.

Dr. Andrew J. Viterbi
Dr. Viterbi has served as the
Vice Chairman of the Board
since its inception in 1985. A
co-founder of the Company, he
also served as Chief Technical
Officer and is the inventor of
the Viterbi decoder. He held
various executive positions at
LINKABIT (M/A-COM LINKABIT
after August 1980), a company
he co-founded. Dr. Viterbi 
is currently a member of 
the U.S. President‘s IT 
Advisory Committee.

Dr. Richard C. Atkinson
Dr. Atkinson has served on 
the Board since 1991. He is 
the President of the University
of California and is the former
Director of the National 
Science Foundation. He is a
past President of the American
Association for the Advancement
of Science and the former Chair
of the Association of American
Universities.  In May 1999, he
was nominated to the Board of
Directors of Cubic Corporation.

Adelia A. Coffman
Ms. Coffman has served on 
the Board from 1985 through
1989 and since 1992. She is a
co-founder of the Company and
was Chief Financial Officer and
Senior Vice President, and 
currently provides financial
consulting services to the
Company. She is active in
Oregon Diverse Industries, 
a real estate investment and
development company of which
she is an owner. She held vari-
ous positions at LINKABIT (M/A-
COM LINKABIT after August
1980) including Controller.

Diana Lady Dougan
Ambassador Dougan has
served on the Board since 
1998. She is Chair of the 
Cyber Century Forum and Chair
of the Center for Strategic and
International Studies.  She
received three Presidential
appointments, spending six
years overseeing international
policies involving telecom,
broadcast and IT technologies
for the U.S. Government. She
served as Assistant Secretary
of State and holds the perma-
nent rank of Ambassador.

Neil Kadisha
Mr. Kadisha has served on the
Board since 1988. He is the 
founder and Chief Executive
Officer of GNC Industries, Inc./
Stadco, an aerospace and air-
craft component manufacturer.
He is the former Chairman 
and Chief Executive Officer of
Omninet Corporation. He is also
the founder and Chairman of
Texollini, a manufacturer of
stretch fabric, and the Chief
Executive Officer of HPM
Corporation, a manufacturer 
of machinery for the plastics
and die casting industries. 

Dr. Robert E. Kahn
Dr. Kahn has served on the
Board since 1997. He is the
Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Corporation for
National Research Initiatives
and is the former Director of 
the Information Processing
Techniques Office for the U.S.
Defense Advanced Research
Projects Agency. Dr. Kahn has
received numerous awards for
his pioneering work on the
Internet and the system design
of the Arpanet, including the
1997 National Medal of
Technology.

Jerome S. Katzin
Mr. Katzin has served on the
Board since 1987. He formerly
worked in investment banking
with Kohn Loeb & Company 
and its successor firms. He 
is a Director of the Coastal
Corporation, an oil and gas
business, and has served on the
legal staff of the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission. He
is currently a member of the
Board of Overseers of the
University of California at 
San Diego.

Duane A. Nelles
Mr. Nelles has served on the
Board since 1988. He is a certi-
fied public accountant and has
worked in the personal invest-
ment business since 1987. Mr.
Nelles has also served on the
Board of Directors of WFS
Financial Inc., an automotive
finance company. Mr. Nelles
was formerly a partner in the
international public accounting
firm of Coopers & Lybrand, L.L.P.

Peter M. Sacerdote
Mr. Sacerdote has served on
the Board since 1989. He is an
Advisory Director of Goldman
Sachs & Company and serves
as the Chairman of its Investment
Committee. He was formerly a
limited partner of Goldman
Sachs Group, L.P. Mr. Sacerdote
also serves as a Director of
AMF Group, a bowling center
operator and equipment manu-
facturer, and Franklin Resources,
a mutual fund management
company.

Frank Savage
Mr. Savage has served on the
Board since 1996. He is the
Chairman of Alliance Capital
Management International 
and is a Director of Alliance
Capital Management
Corporation. Mr. Savage for-
merly served as a Senior Vice
President of the Equitable Life
Assurance Society of the 
U.S. He is also a Director of
Lockheed Martin Corporation,
Lyondell Chemical Company,
ENRON Corporation, Essence
Communications, Inc. and 
The Johns Hopkins and 

Brent Scowcroft
General Scowcroft has served
on the Board since 1994. He is
currently President of the
Scowcroft Group, an interna-
tional consulting firm and 
the Forum for International
Policy, a non-profit organization
promoting American leadership
and foreign policy. He is also a
Director of Pennzoil–Quaker
State Company. A retired Air
Force Lt. General, Scowcroft
served as assistant to the
President for National Security
Affairs for Presidents Bush 
and Ford. 

Marc I. Stern
Mark Stern has served on 
the Board since 1994. He is 
currently the President of the
TCW Group, Inc., an asset 
management firm. He is
Chairman of Apex Mortgage
Capital, Inc. and of TCW Galileo
Funds, Inc. Mr. Stern was for-
merly President and a Director
of SunAmerica, Inc. He also
held executive positions with
the Henley Group, Inc. and
Allied-Signal, Inc.
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Corporate Headquarters
QUALCOMM Incorporated
5775 Morehouse Drive
San Diego, California 92121-1714
www.qualcomm.com 

UNITED STATES 

Atlanta, Georgia
Boulder, Colorado 
Irving, Texas 
Kansas City, Missouri  
Las Vegas, Nevada
Bethesda, Maryland 
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania

Portland, Oregon
Miami, Florida
Salt Lake City, Utah
Scotts Valley, California
Washington, D.C.
Santa Clara, California  
Concord, Massachusetts

INTERNATIONAL LOCATIONS

Sydney, Australia 
Melbourne, Australia 
Toronto, Canada 
Tokyo, Japan 
Beijing, China 
Sophia Antipolis, France 
Lagos, Nigeria 

Manila, Philippines 
Moscow, Russia
Haifa, Israel 
Seoul, South Korea
Sao Paulo, Brazil 
New Delhi, India
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